
 

 

 

 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47 (POWELL RIVER) BOARD OF EDUCATION  

Regular Board Meeting 
4:00 pm, Wednesday, September 22, 2021 

SCHOOL BOARD OFFICE 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
 
PRESENTATION Graham Roberts, Kristy Rowbotham MNP - Audited Financial Statements  
     
QUESTION PERIOD 
 
CHAIRPERSON’S REMARKS 
 
 
1. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

1.a) MOTION: “THAT the Regular meeting agenda of September 22, 2021, be adopted as circulated.” 
 
 

2. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
2.a) MOTION: “THAT the Regular meeting minutes of June 9, 2021, be adopted as circulated.” 
 
 

3. REPORT OF CLOSED MEETINGS 
3.a)  June 9, 2021 – The Board met in closed to discuss personnel items. 
3.b) June 23, 2021 – The Board met in a closed meeting to discuss a personnel item. 
3.c) July 7, 2021 – The Board met in a closed meeting to discuss personnel items and an item related to 

property. 
 
 
4. INCOMING CORRESPONDENCE  

4.a)  SD 52 to Hon. J. Whiteside 
4.b) Hon. J. Whiteside to SD67 
4.c) Hon. J. Whiteside to Education Partners 
4.d) Hon. J. Whiteside to MJW Roundtable 
4.e) Community Notification System 
4.f) Ms. Winchell to B. Rounis, BKS Pac and J. Yule, re:  Brooks Secure Bike Enclosure 

 MOTION: “THAT the correspondence listed in item 4.a) to 4.f) be received.” 
 
 
5. OUTGOING CORRESPONDENCE 

5.a)  SD47 to Powell River Community Forest 
5.b) SD47 to City Matters 
5.c) SD47 to Powell River Community Forest 
5.d) SD47 to PRESS 
5.e) SD47 to Parents 
5.f) SD47 to City of Powell River 

 
 
6. SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS’ REPORT 

6.a) Framework for Enhancing Student Learning – 2020/2021 Annual Report 
 
 



 

 

 

 
6.b) School Restart Plan: 

i) Health & Safety 
ii) Class Sizes (oral) 
iii) Parent Information 

6.c) Projected September Enrolment 
6.d) BAA Courses 

i) Hockey 
ii) Recreation Management 11/12 
iii) Community Service 11 
MOTION: “TO approve the three board approved courses as outlined.” 

 
6.e) Power to Suspend for 2021-2022 

MOTION: “TO recognize the personnel listed as having authorization as outlined.” 
 
6.f) Maintenance of Order for 2021-2022  

MOTION: “TO recognize the personnel listed as having authorization as outlined.” 
 

6.g) Suspension, Exclusion and Seclusion Report – N/A 
  

MOTION: “THAT the Superintendent of Schools’ Report be received as presented.” 
 
 

7. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT 
7.a) Financial Statement Discussion & Analysis 
7.b) Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 MOTION: “TO approve the operating surplus restriction of $1,437,164 and the Local Capital restriction 

of $1,058,733 as detailed in NOTE 18 of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021.” 
 
 MOTION: “THAT the Board of Education of School District 47 (Powell River) approve the Audited 

Financials Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2021.” 
 
7.c) 2022/2023 Capital Plan Overview 
 
 MOTION: “TO approve the 2022/2023 Capital Plan Submission.” 
 
7.d) Month End Financial Report as at August 31, 2021 
 

MOTION: “THAT the Secretary Treasurer’s report be received as presented.” 
 
 

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS   
8.a)  Committee of the Whole Report from September 8, 2021 
 
 Recommended motions arising from the Committee of the Whole meeting: 
 
 MOTION: “THAT the Board of Education of School District 47 (Powell River) contract with Sloan 

Consultants LTD to assist with revising and updating the Boards Policies and Administrative Procedures.” 
 
 MOTION: ” THAT first reading be given to the proposed amendments to Board Policy 2 bringing in effect 

the ability to record Regular meetings of the Board to assist in communications with the public.”    
  
 MOTION: ”THAT the Board of Education of School District 47 (Powell River) provide the City of Powell 

River with a letter outlining a series of traffic related concerns regarding student safety surrounding 
Westview Elementary School.”  

https://www.sd47.bc.ca/Documents/SD47%20Communicable%20Disease%20Guidelines_2021-2022.pdf
https://www.sd47.bc.ca/Programs/parents/Documents/DPAC%20Parent%20Advocate%20Brochure.pdf


 

 

 

 
9. OTHER BUSINESS 

9.a) Board Work Plan 
9.b) Days of Observance 
 
  

 QUESTION PERIOD 
 
 
 MEDIA QUESTION PERIOD 
 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

Minutes of Regular Meeting June 9, 2021 
 

 
 
 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47 (POWELL RIVER) 
BOARD OF EDUCATION - REGULAR MEETING 

4:00 PM., Wednesday, June 9, 2021  
SCHOOL BOARD OFFICE 

 
 

                             MINUTES 
 
 
 
 
Present: Dale Lawson, Doug Skinner, Jaclyn Miller, Rob Hill, Brendan Behan  
 
Also in attendance: Jay Yule (Superintendent), Steve Hopkins (Secretary-Treasurer) 
 Via Zoom:  A. Burt, K. Brach 
   
 
PRESENTATIONS 
Student Graduation Planning (B. Rounis) 
Principal B. Rounis outlined for Trustees the various events associated with this year’s Grad Class and 
the pandemic health & safety considerations of each. See agenda for additional details. 
 
 
Grade 12 Brooks Secondary Student – Jordana Pangburn – Capstone Presentation:  LGBTQ2S + 
Inclusivity in Schools 
Grade 12 student J. Pangburn presented for Trustees her ‘Capstone’ graduation project on LGBTQ2S+ 
and inclusivity in schools.  See agenda for a copy of the presentation.  
 
J. Pangburn and A. Burt each fielded questions from Trustees. 
 
 
Question Period 
N/A 
 
 
CHAIRPERSON’S REMARKS  

“June is typically a time when we celebrate milestones and accomplishments such as moving up 
a grade level, transitions to high school, graduation, and the beginning of summer break.  
This year June begins with a heaviness and a heartbreaking reminder of our collective 
responsibility to drive meaningful change forward.  
 
We have reached out to acknowledge, provide, sympathies and condolences to the Tk'emlúps 
te Secwépemc and our own partners in the Tla’amin nation and all those effected by the 
horrific finding of children’s remains at the residential school in Kamloops.  
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Myrna McCallum, host of the Trauma -Informed Lawyer Podcast, a Metis Cree former 
prosecutor and Indian Residential school adjudicator delivered a poignant keynote presentation 
to staff during Mondays Professional Development Day. 
 
This session was designed to share trauma informed strategies and focus on the importance of 
empathy, safety, and connection. 
 
Myrna reminded us that the recent discovery of the remains of 215 children in Kamloops is 
something that we have always known. This is what indigenous people have been sharing for 
years, she touched on the importance of making space for this knowledge. 
 
Myrna suggested that each of us should be asking ourselves how we are coping and what are 
we thinking about with what we now know about the indigenous experience? Trauma informed 
practice is listening, it is learning, and it takes courage. 
 
Each of us need to pause and reflect on the enormous loss and trauma that residential schools 
brought to indigenous communities and families across Canada. 
 
The truth is that the history is ugly, the reconciliation journey is messy, uncomfortable, terribly 
painful, and different for each person. As statues topple and people struggle to process their 
knowledge and make sense of their truth, we know that none of us can change history, but we 
will educate children with the truth. 
 
We are proud of our students and community who have rallied with various events and 
acknowledgments. It is important to recognize the role that the education system has on the 
path of truth and reconciliation as we grieve with, support, and understand our friends, 
neighbors, and their respective journeys.  
 
We will continue to embed truth and reconciliation in our teaching and in our school cultures as 
we acknowledge and appreciate the Tla’amin people and the lands we have the privilege to 
reside on. 
 
 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Moved: B. Behan 
Seconded:  J. Miller 
 
 THAT the Agenda be approved as presented. 

 
Status:   Carried 
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2. ADOPTION OF MINUTES  
 

Moved: B. Behan 
Seconded:  D. Skinner 

 
THAT the Regular Minutes of May 12, 2021 be approved as presented. 

 
  Status:   Carried 
 
 
3. CORRESPONDENCE  

INCOMING 
 3.a)   SD5 to BCSTA 

  R. Hill asked for some clarification on the Executive Compensation Wage Freeze which S. 
Hopkins answered by providing the background and context reporting that a one year 
wage freeze was applied to all government positions considered to be of an ‘executive’ 
nature. This initiative is intended to be a fiscal strategy resulting from the COVID 
pandemic.  

 
 3.b) BCSTA to SD5 
  For information. 
 
 3.c) SD5 to H. Halliday 
  For information. 
 

3.d)   SD62 to Hon. S. Whiteside, Minister of Education and Hon. S. Robinson, Minister of 
Finance 

 For information. 
 

3.e) SD63 to Hon. S. Whiteside, Minister of Education and S. MacDonald, Deputy Minister of 
Education 

  For information. 
 

3.f) BCSTA to Hon. A. Dix, Minister of Health 
 For information. 
 
3.g) BCSTA to Hon. S. Malcolmson, Minister of Mental Health and Addictions 
 For information. 
 
3.h) BCSTA to Hon. A. Kang, Ministry of Advanced Education and Skills Training 
 For information. 
 
3.i) BCSTA to Hon. G. Heyman, Minister of Environment and Climate Change Strategy 
 For information. 

 
3.j) BCSTA to Hon. L. Beare, Minister of Citizens’ Services 
 For information. 

 
3.k) BCSTA to Hon. R. Kahlon, Minister of Jobs, Economic Recovery and Innovation 
 For information. 
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3.l) BCSTA to Hon. Mitzi Dean, Minister of Children and Family Development 
 For information. 
 
3.m) BCSTA to Hon. M. Farnworth, Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General 
 For information. 

 
3.n) BCSTA to Hon. M. Rankin, Minister of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation 
 For information. 

 
3.o) BCSTA to Hon. S. Robinson, Minister of Finance 
 For information. 
 
3.p) BCSTA to Hon. N. Simons, Minister of Social Development and Poverty Reduction 
 For information. 

 
3.q) Hon. M. Farnworth, Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General to BCSTA 
 For information. 

 
3.r) SD52 to G. Dhaliwal 
 For information. 

 
3.s) Letter to BCSSA 

  For information. 
   

 
OUTGOING 
3.t) SD47 to Parents/Caregivers 

  For information. 
 

3.u) SD47 to R. Withers and D. deRoon 
 J. Yule and B. Behan both spoke to the outgoing correspondence and the initiative in 
general. 

 
 

Moved: R. Hill 
Seconded:  D. Skinner 
 
THAT the correspondence be received and filed. 

 
  Status:   Carried 

 
4. SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS’ REPORT 

 
4.a) Communications Plan Recommendations 

J. Yule spoke to the draft Communications Plan as prepared by the consultant and 
included in the agenda. 
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J. Yule spoke to the information in general as well as staff’s specific recommendation to 
recruit a communication’s professional to assist with the implementation and related 
ongoing work. 
 
Robust discussion ensued about the plan and included questions regarding brand 
standards, prospective logo redesign, timeframe, analytics, budget, and social media. 
 
The recommendation to recruit a communications professional to assist with the 
implementation was supported by Trustees and will be endorsed by way of acceptance 
of the Superintendent’s Report. 

 
 

4.b) Distributed Learning Letter & Policy Changes 
J. Yule spoke to the agenda materials pertaining to pending changes to the Distributed 
Learning Policy. 
 
J. Yule spoke specifically to the angst amongst program staff and parents and informed 
Trustees that conversations with government are ongoing. 
 

 
4.c) Childcare BC New Spaces Fund Announcement 

J. Yule spoke to the recent childcare announcement outlining the School Board’s 
successful application to lead the creation of additional childcare spaces on two School 
Board properties. 
 
 

4.d) Board Approved Courses 
J. Yule spoke directly to several proposed Board Authorized courses that were included 
in the agenda stating that the Board would approve those with acceptance of his report.  

 
 

4.e) Canadian Student Tobacco, Alcohol & Drugs Survey 
J. Yule spoke to the annual provincial survey and his recommendation to support the 
request for assistance in conducting it. 

 
 

4.b) Suspension, Exclusion and Seclusion Report YTD Sept. 8, 2020 to May 31, 2021 
For information. 

 
 

Moved: D. Skinner 
Seconded:  B. Behan 
 
THAT the Superintendent of Schools’ Report be received as presented. 
 
Status:   Carried 
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5. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT 
 

5.a) 2021/2022 Annual Budget Adoption 
S. Hopkins spoke to the budget materials included in the agenda making specific reference 
to the few changes made since the first and second readings that took place in May. 
 
The net change was an increase in projected operating revenue of $188,675 mostly tied to 
revised International Student enrollment. 
 
Proposed spending of the additional funds is tied to direct costs associated with student 
recruitment and implementation plans associated with the Communications Plan 
recommendations. 

 
 

Moved: D. Skinner 
Seconded:  J. Miller 
 
To adopt final reading of the Annual Budget for 2021/2022 as presented. 
 
Status:   Carried 

 
5.b) Capital Plan Response Letter & Bylaw 

S. Hopkins spoke briefly to the revised Capital Plan Response Letter as well as to proposed 
plans for the following year’s Capital Plans. 

 
 

Moved: R. Hill 
Seconded:  J. Miller 
 
To adopt first, second and final reading of the Capital Response Bylaw as presented. 
 
Status:   Carried 

 
5.c) Community Forest Grant Application 

S. Hopkins spoke to the District grant application reporting that confirmation was recently 
received from the City of Powell River confirming Community Forest support of the 
application. 
 
S. Hopkins outlined for Trustees, an overview of the planning to date with respect to 
tendering of the work associated with upgrading the field. 
 
Superintendent stated that a letter of thanks would be sent to the Community Forest 
Board thanking them for their support. 

 
 

5.d) Annual Facility Grant Planning & Other Capital Working Papers 
S. Hopkins spoke to draft plans associated with annual summer work improving school 
facilities and grounds. 
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The proposed work included site furnishing throughout the District to enhance outdoor 
gathering spaces as well as playground improvements to each of Westview, Henderson 
and Texada Schools. 

 
5.a) Carbon Neutral Action Report 

For information. 
 

5.b) Month End Financial Report as at April 30, 2021 
  For information. 
 
 

Moved: D. Skinner 
Seconded:  J. Miller 

 
THAT the Secretary-Treasurer’s Report be received as presented. 

 
Status:   Carried 

 
 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

 6.a)    Poverty Reduction Advisory Committee Agenda of June 1, 2021 
 For information. 
 
 

7. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7.a)   Board Committee Appointments 

   

   

TRUSTEE REPRESENTATIVES TO SCHOOLS    
School Name Board Representative  
Brooks Secondary D. Skinner  
Edgehill Elementary R. Hill  
Henderson Elementary J. Miller  
James Thomson Elementary B. Behan  
Kelly Creek Community B. Behan  
Partners in Education J. Miller  
Texada Elementary D. Lawson  
Westview Elementary D. Lawson  
 

    

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD   
Committee Name Board Representative Chair 

Committee of the Whole All   

Educational and Curriculum Change D. Skinner & B. Behan Allison Burt 

First Nations Management Meeting D. Lawson & J. Miller Jay Yule 

Health Committee B. Behan & R. Hill Tawnie Gaudreau 

Joint Management Committee (JMC) R. Hill & J. Miller (shared vote) Vanessa Coray 

Labour Negotiations D. Skinner & D. Lawson   
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BOARD APPOINTEES    
Committee Name Board Representative  
BCPSEA Representative (elected) D. Skinner  
BCSTA Provincial Council Representative (elected) D. Skinner  
Chamber of Commerce D. Lawson  
District Parent Advisory Council D. Lawson  
Northern Sunshine Coast Ferry Advisory Council B. Behan  
Powell River Community Action Team J. Miller  
Social Action and Planning Advisory Committee R. Hill  
Sustainability R. Hill  
Poverty Reduction Advisory Committee    

 
7.b)   Annual Board Meeting Calendar 

Accepted as published. 
 

7.c)   Annual Board Work Plan - Draft 
J. Yule spoke to the draft Board Work Plan including prospective days of observance.  This 
will be finalized at the September 2021 Board Meeting. 

 
7.d)   Prospective Days of Observance - Draft 

Robust conversation regarding prospective days of observance, which will be finalized at 
the September 2021 Board Meeting. 

 
 
QUESTION PERIOD 
N/A 
 
 
MEDIA QUESTION PERIOD  
N/A 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

Moved: B. Behan 
 

THAT the Regular Board Meeting be adjourned at 5:51 p.m. 
 

Status:   Carried  
        

 
 
 
D. Lawson S. Hopkins  
Chairperson Secretary-Treasurer                      
 
SH/ac 
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• PREPARE NOW

• KNOW WHAT TO DO

• KEEP INFORMED

Be ready for an
EMERGENCY

The qathet Regional 
Emergency Program has 
developed eight community 
evacuation guides as a 
result of the communities’ 
input at our Community 
Evacuation Planning 
meetings held in spring and 
summer of 2019.

These guides will help you 
prepare your own household 
emergency plan.

Community evacuation 
guides will be available at 
the qathet Regional District, 
Tla’amin Nation and City of 
Powell River offices, as well 
as online at qathet.ca.
Guides have also been 
distributed to various 

businesses and organizations 
throughout the region.

The Regional Emergency 
Program would like to thank 
first responders, community 
members and staff for their 
input. In the event of an 
emergency, all residents and 
organizations are critical 
public safety partners 
including individuals, frontline 
responders, businesses, 
volunteer groups and 
governments. Everyone’s 
preparedness is essential.

For more information on the 
qathet Regional Emergency 
Program please contact 
604-485-2260 or email
emergency@qathet.ca.

Choose
your plan!

Find all eight 
Community  
Evacuation
guides at 
qathet.ca
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202 - 4675 Marine Avenue • Powell River, BC  V8A 2L2
604-485-2260 • qathet.ca • administration@qathet.ca

Working Together
coastal by nature

City of

 NEW COMMUNITY NOTIFICATION SYSTEM

qathet.ca • 202 - 4675 Marine Avenue • Powell River, BC  V8A 2L2 • 604-485-2260 • administration@qathet.ca

Working Together
coastal by nature

City of

Community Notification 
System

Visit www.qathet.ca/emergency-preparedness 

or scan the code at left. Then click on ‘Enroll Here’ and fill out the form.

Please contact emergency@qathet.ca for more information. 

Take time to discuss the importance 
of emergency preparedness with 
family and neighbours, understand 
the hazards that exist where you live 
and make a plan.

Visit qathet.ca to access personal and 
community preparedness resources 
including templates to get started. Be 
sure to get a copy of your Community 
Evacuation Guide. 

"Am I prepared?"

Do this now!

The qathet Regional District is implementing a new Community Notification System. 
During an emergency event, the system can share important public safety messages 
by phone, email or text message. To help our community stay aware and be prepared, 

we encourage all residents to register for regional community notifications. 



Patricia Winchell 
7945 Traffe Road 

Powell River, BC, V8A 0R6 
604-223-4077 

 

September 18, 2021 

 
Bill Rounis, Principal  
Brooks Secondary School 
5400 Marine Avenue 
Powell River, BC, V8A 2L6 
 
RE:  Secure Bike Storage at Brooks Secondary School 
 
Dear Mr. Rounis, 

As a member of the Brooks Secondary community, I wanted to take this opportunity to highlight the 
need for a lockable bike enclosure at Brooks Secondary School. We are see increasing numbers of 
students and staff cycling to and from the school.  As a parent I am very concerned that this opportunity 
is being missed for some due to a lack of a secure bike enclosure; or that for those who are riding, they 
have reservations due to the lack of a safe place to store their bike.  We need to ensure that students, 
staff and parents feel that their equipment is safe.  

Perhaps if there was a safe and covered space for students and staff to store their bikes during school 
hours, we would see even more Brooks members commuting on bikes.  If we saw more students and 
staff on the road biking to and from school, then perhaps more students/staff would be encouraged 
and/or motivated to join the bike commute.  This would directly impact the environment and provide a 
sense of pride and accomplishment for those who are doing their part to reduce emissions.  As well, 
when we look at student and staff wellness, we know that being active and outside increases 
endorphins and reduces anxiety.  The Powell River community is focused on environmental 
improvements, and we all want a healthy society.  Having a secure bike space can only improve the 
chances of students and staff riding their bikes and improving these stats! 

Also, many of the students at Brooks have saved and saved in order to afford a bike.  With today’s prices 
a bike can cost between $2,000-$7,000.  A student would not be able to replace a stolen or damaged 
bike very easily.  I believe it is our due diligence to ensure students have a safe place to store their 
equipment during their day at school.  Over the coming months Brooks will be starting up their 
mountain bike club, which means there will be more and more bikes at Brooks Secondary School. We 
need to make sure that students and parents feel that their equipment is safe, as well, it would be 
unfortunate to have students unable to participate due to the lack of safe bike lock-up.    

We need to make sure all students and staff have the opportunity to ride their bikes to school.  This 
requires having a safe enclosure to store their bike during school hours, and I think it’s the district’s 
responsibility to support such an initiative.  



Sincerely, 

Patricia Winchell 
Patricia Winchell 
Parent of Brooks Secondary student Ellie Winchell 
 
CC:  Brooks PAC, Jay Yule - Superintendent, Brendan Behan – SD 47 School Board Trustee 



Telephone: 604 414 2600      Fax: 604 485 6435 

 

 
 
July 6, 2021 
 
 
Mr. Greg Hemphill 
President 
Powell River Community Forest 
 
Via email:  greghemphill@telus.net 
 
 
Dear Mr. Hemphill, 
 
Re: Powell River Community Forest Grant – Brooks Playing Field – Turf Project 
 

 
On behalf of School District 47, we would like to thank Powell River Community Forest for the grant 
approved to replace the turf field at Brooks Secondary. 
 
In addition to the field being used by Brooks’ Senior Secondary students, during Powell River’s soccer 
season, it is used week day evenings and during the day on weekends by Powell River Youth Soccer, 
and week day evenings by Powell River’s Villa Soccer Club and local men’s and women’s recreational 
soccer leagues.   
 
We thank PR Community Forest for providing this funding for our school and community to play and 
practice on a durable field year round.  
 

Yours truly, 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. Jay Yule 
Superintendent 
Board of Education 
School District 47 (Powell River) 
 
 
JY/ac 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 47 (POWELL RIVER) 

Office of the Superintendent of Schools 

4351 Ontario Avenue, Powell River, BC V8A 1V3 
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July 8, 2021 
 
City Matters 
c/o Pat Martin 
6937 Hammond Street 
Powell River, BC 
V8A 1R3 
 
Via email:  ms.pat.martin@gmail.com 
 
 
Dear Ms. Martin, 

Thank you for your letter dated June 23, 2021 concerning the recent Tla’amin Management Services Public 

Notice of Determination of Conflict of Interest. The Board of Education of School District 47 (Powell River) is 

aware that the Executive Council of the Tla’amin Nation has made a finding under its law, that Dr. Yule was in 

conflict of interest three years ago in relation to certain personal business interests of his in a project in 

partnership with a Tla’amin Nation Company of which he was also a Director.  

To be clear, there has been no allegation that Dr. Yule is in conflict of interest in relation to his duties to the 

Board of Education in relation to this matter.   

With respect to your questions regarding the Powell River Educational Services Society, or PRESS, although I 

cannot answer your two specific questions, as they do not pertain to the School Board, perhaps I can provide 

some contextual information for you. I understand from your letter and from others, that there appears to be a 

continued belief that the two organizations are related to one another.  

PRESS and the School District, as organizations, are separate and independent organizations. Each organization 

has its own Board and neither organization’s finances are comingled with that of the other.  The Powell River 

Board of Education has no financial control over PRESS nor do PRESS or the Board of Education hold themselves 

out as a single integrated business. PRESS operates outside of the scope of the K to 12 Education Sector with 

many of their activities, involving programs or initiatives supporting disadvantaged young adults, homeless 

youth, and a host of other community minded initiatives.    

The creation of PRESS in 2008 was borne from an opportunity that had been presented to the Board of 

Education, and at that time, after some deliberation, it was decided by Trustees that it was not a fit within the 

mandate of the School District or the public school system. At that time, the proposal from staff to create a 

non-profit society independent and unrelated to the School District was supported and seen to be an 

innovative solution. Included in that proposal was that PRESS would rent surplus office space from the School 

District for a monthly fee in much the same manner it has rented or offered surplus space to other 

organizations. The Board of Education was, and continues to be, aware that those providing administrative 

services to PRESS receive a modest salary reflective of their time.  

   

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 47 (POWELL RIVER) 

Board of Education 

4351 Ontario Avenue, Powell River, BC V8A 1V3 

mailto:ms.pat.martin@gmail.com


 

 

We are also aware that the School District has been involved in, or partnered with PRESS in the past, as have 

many other local governments, agencies and organizations. We are also aware that in addition to the 

arrangement to rent office space, some of these historical initiatives have created confusion for some and we 

are actively looking at ways in which to remedy that.  

To be clear, Dr. Yule’s responsibilities as Superintendent of Schools are independent of his role at PRESS and 

the Board has not been asked to enter into any arrangement with PRESS, which would financially advantage Dr. 

Yule.  

We continue to believe that integrity and transparency are critical elements in our roles as Trustees and we will 

continue to work to instil and maintain public confidence in our system.  

Sincerely, 
 
 

 
 

Ms. Dale Lawson 
Chairperson 
Board of Education, School District 47 (Powell River) 
 
 
DL/ac 
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August 27, 2021 
 
 
To Whom This May Concern, 
 
Re: Powell River Community Forest – All Ages and Abilities Active Transportation Infrastructure Grant 

 
This letter is written in support of the City of Powell River's application for up to 50% matching funding 
to support All Ages and Abilities Active Transportation Infrastructure in our Community.  
 
Promoting active transportation for students is something School District 47 strongly believes in. We 
know that the link between physical activity and learning is very strong, and that children who are 
active daily are more likely to excel in their education and in the school environment. Walking or 
biking to school is one of the best ways for students to achieve the recommended hour of daily 
activity.  
 
We have had great success with our local partnerships in active transportation thus far. Our cycling 
programming is ongoing, including the expansion of our District Bike Library, the completion of the 
Youth Bike Rack Project, After School Bike Programs, and Bike To School Week Programming across 
the District. Despite these successes, we know from surveys that children identify having a safe route 
to school as a major barrier to walking and cycling in Powell River.  
 
We support this application and are hopeful it will be met favourably as this continued collaboration 
benefits the community and our region. 

 
Yours truly, 

 
 
 
 
 

Dr. Jay Yule 
Superintendent 
Board of Education 
School District 47 (Powell River) 
 
 
JY/ac 
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July 7, 2021 
 
Powell River Educational Services Society (PRESS) 
Attention:  Mr. James Delorme, President 
PO Box 408 
Powell River, BC 
V8A 5C2 
 
 
Dear Mr. Delorme, 
 
This letter is to inform Powell River Educational Services Society (PRESS), that due to the increasing number of 
programs throughout our District, an increased need for space is required at our Administration Office. 
 
By way of this letter, we are informing you that we will require the space you currently rent from us effective 
September 30, 2021 or as soon as is practical. 
 
We thank PRESS for being great tenants and trust this gives ample notice for you to find alternative rental space. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

 
 

Ms. Dale Lawson 
Chairperson 
Board of Education, School District 47 (Powell River) 
 
 
DL/ac 
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National Day for Truth and Reconciliation  

Added to Calendar 
 
On August 3, 2021, the B.C. Government formally recognized September 30th as the National 
Day for Truth and Reconciliation in alignment with legislation passed by the federal government 
in June. 
 
As part of this formal recognition, the Powell River School District will be closed to all students 
and staff on Thursday, September 30, 2021. District employees usually entitled to federal and 
provincial statutory holidays will receive this day off. 
 
September 30 has recently been known as Orange Shirt Day, a day meant to recognize the 
lasting effects of Canada's residential school system. It honours Indigenous residential school 
survivors, their families, and communities as a vital part of the process of reconciliation. 
Throughout our schools and District sites, this day is historically one of learning and listening. 
As a public education institution, Powell River School District recognizes the importance of 
officially honouring September 30, aligning with the District's ongoing commitments, and 
strategic goals to teach the truth around residential schools' shameful legacy and the ongoing 
need for Truth and Reconciliation. 
 
This year, school events and activities to commemorate Orange Shirt Day will take place during 
the week of September 27. Planning for the statutory holiday closure and Orange Shirt Day 
programming is underway.  The 2021-2022 District Calendar has been updated, along with the 
minimum number of hours of instruction that must be offered as per the School 
Act and Calendar Regulation, as directed by the Ministry of Education. 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 47 (POWELL RIVER) 

Office of the Superintendent of Schools 

 

https://news.gov.bc.ca/releases/2021FIN0048-001531
https://news.gov.bc.ca/releases/2021FIN0048-001531
https://www.sd47.bc.ca/Lists/Calendar/calendar.aspx#/=
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September 16, 2021 
 
Mr. Russell Brewer  
Chief Administrative Officer  
City of Powell River  
6910 Duncan Street  
Powell River, BC, V8A 1V4  
 
 
Dear Russell, 
 
We are writing this letter in response to your email to staff dated August 27, 2021, with respect to consideration for 
a rainbow crosswalk at the intersection of Selkirk/Nootka. The email outlined the City of Powell River’s potential 
placement of a rainbow crosswalk at the intersection at Selkirk/Nootka and asked if School District 47 would be 
supportive of this initiative at that location.  
  
The Board of Education consulted with the School District 47’s SOGI District Administrator and SOGI District Lead for 
input prior to discussing the matter at the Committee of the Whole meeting on September 8, 2021. The 
Superintendent has also since requested that the School Principal consult with parents and staff at Westview 
Elementary.   
  
SOGI-inclusive symbols like rainbow crosswalks demonstrate a commitment to inclusion and diversity and we 
wholeheartedly support these in our community and understand the importance of SOGI-inclusive environments to 
create positive and welcoming spaces for all people in our community.  
  
As a City initiative, we would prefer to see a rainbow crosswalk in a location of higher visibility, such as the one 
at Joyce/Nootka.  The entire qathet region would see this if it were at that location. A rainbow crosswalk at 
Selkirk/Nootka would mostly be used and viewed by the school community of Westview Elementary School and may 
be perceived by residents as a School and/or District initiative. Unless the City were considering rainbow crosswalks 
near all neighborhood schools, this is a perception we would prefer to avoid.  
  
We appreciate the City of Powell River's advocacy for another rainbow crosswalk in Powell River and we support this 
initiative. The School District SOGI Committee plans to allocate funds and resources into a variety of SOGI initiatives as 
well. Pride flags, rainbow benches, rainbow stairs, and rainbow parking barriers will all be under consideration.   
  
We would welcome further conversation on this topic with the City of Powell River and thank you again for your 
ongoing support and consideration for SOGI inclusive initiatives.   

  
Sincerely, 
 

 
 

Ms. Dale Lawson 
Chairperson 
Board of Education, School District 47 (Powell River) 
DL/ac 
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FRAMEWORK FOR ENHANCING STUDENT LEARNING

http://www.sd47.bc.ca/


INTRODUCTION
Each year, the Board of Education prepares and
submits to the Minister a report regarding
student performance, including specific
outcomes and measures aligned with the
Ministry of Education's Framework for Enhancing
Student Learning.

This annual progress report identifies
the Board of Education's Strategic
Plan and the district's priorities and
progress to improving students
success and equity of learning
outcomes for every student in School
District No. 47. 

The Board of Education's strategic
plan acknowledges provincial goals
and priorities for district and school
improvement actions and initiatives
and aligns with the Ministry of
Education's Framework for Enhancing
Student Learning. 

Through our Strategic Plan and the
Ministry of Education's Policy for
Student Success our aim is to ensure
that all students have access to high-
quality education that will prepare
them for their future. 

This school year has been particularly
challenging as we adjusted to a full 

year of COVID-19 and the significant
disruption and changes that it brought
to our district community.

Through it all, our teachers,
administrators, support staff, students,
and families have persevered and
adapted to the changes and
challenges. We are eternally thankful
to them. Their commitment to learning
and safety allowed our schools to
remain open and our students to
continue developing the knowledge,
skills, and attitudes needed for them
to thrive now and in their futures.

We have much to be proud of this
year, but we also know that we have a
lot of work to do to reach parity of
learning outcomes for all students.

A focus on Indigenous students,
students with diverse abilities or
disabilities, and children and youth in
care will continue across the system.

VISION

Our vision is to enable all learners to develop
their individual potential and to acquire the
knowledge, skills, and attitudes needed to
contribute to a healthy, democratic, and
pluralistic society.

MISSION

Our mission is to prepare students, within a
safe, inclusive, and dynamic environment to
face a changing world as lifelong learners
and informed, responsible citizens.

VALUES

> Respect             
> Collaboration 
> Teamwork         
> Dignity           

> Social Responsibility
> Engagement
> Accountability
> Equity

> Inclusion
> Empathy
> Innovation
> Responsiveness

> Relationships
> Integrity
> Openness and Transparency
> Diversity

ACKNOWLEDEMENT

We respectfully acknowledge that we live,
work, and learn on the traditional territory of
the Tla'amin Nation. 

https://www.sd47.bc.ca/Board/planning/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/education-training/k-12/administration/program-management/enhancing-student-learning
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/education-training/k-12/administration/program-management/vision-for-student-success


Annual District and School Plan Update Cycle

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
The Board has been and continues to be committed to both long-term
and short-term school and district planning. The Board's Administrative
Procedure 105 supports collaborative planning processes as the means
to improvement in instruction and effective fiscal planning and
decision-making. 

The Board of Education's  multi-year Strategic Plan acknowledges
provincial goals and priorities for district and school improvement
initiatives. The Strategic Plan helps schools to establish specific goals
and strategies for improvement planning (School Growth Plans) that
align with the Board’s overall direction while still meeting their own,
unique circumstances. The concept of continuous and quality
improvement is embedded into the daily activities and tasks of
individuals within a school district system and checkpoints for status
updates and opportunities for feedback and revision are included.

School Growth Plans are school specific strategic plans. These plans
align with the Strategic Plan and set out the changes a school needs to
make to improve the level of student achievement. These plans show
how and when these changes will be made. They are also a mechanism
through which the public can hold schools accountable for student
success and through which it can measure improvement. Multi-year
School Growth Plans should be considered working documents that
schools use to monitor progress over time and make revisions when
necessary to ensure that plans stay on course. 

We also embarked on an Equity in Action Project this year and have
started conversations using the project's guided questions with
rightsholders, including Tla'amin Nation leadership and elders, and with
other stakeholders. The work done will inform next steps for how we can
work together to create change for Indigenous students.

STRATEGIC PLANNING: REPORTING AND ACCOUNTABILITY

ONGOING ENGAGEMENT AND FEEDBACK
The Board uses an annual district and school plan update cycle to
monitor progress and allow for ongoing engagement and feedback
from education stakeholders and Indigenous rightsholders. 

The District and schools use our website, Cascade, email, newsletters,
and social media to keep people informed of improvement plans and

progress. Consultation and collaboration occurs through regular
meetings, committees, engagement sessions, surveys, and through our
PACs and DPAC. 

When possible, student voice has been included in plans through survey
results, focus groups, and leadership meetings.

https://www.sd47.bc.ca/Board/procedures/AdministrativeProcedures/AP105%20-%20Strategic%20Planning_Reporting%20and%20Accountability.pdf
https://www.sd47.bc.ca/Board/planning/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://portal.sd47.bc.ca/group/rss76ti/Documents/SD%20047%20FESL_Masked_Enhancing%20Student%20Learning%20Report%20Data.pdf
https://www.sd47.governmentdashboards.com/about/schools
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/education-training/k-12/administration/program-management/indigenous-education/equity-in-action


BACKGROUND
The District serves approximately 3,000 students in five regular
elementary schools, one dual track elementary school, one remote
island elementary school, three distributed learning centres, two
alternate schools, and one secondary school. 

The District provides a number of additional programs, including the
following: 

POWELL RIVER is a beautiful coastal community
situated on the Upper Sunshine Coast in the
qathet Regional District and on the traditional
territory of the Tla'amin Nation. 

Just over 130 km from Vancouver, BC, Powell
River is surrounded by forest, mountains, and
many freshwater bodies of water and is part of
the coastal mountain range. With the Pacific
Ocean to its west, the region enjoys a temperate
climate. 

The qathet Regional District currently has a
population of 20,070 (Statistics Canada: 2016
Census).

After School Program 
Digital IM Program 
Duel Credit Academics and Trades 
Eco-Immersion and Leadership Programming
International Student Program 
Early Intervention 
Powell Lake Ecological and Outdoor Learning Centre 
Pre-Kindergarten Screening 
Provincial Auditory Outreach Program 
Strong Start Programs (4 locations)
Summer Learning Program 

Currently in the District, there are 402 students identifying as Indigenous
(approximately 12% of overall student population) and 560 students with
diverse abilities or disabilities (approximately 18% of overall student
population).

NUMBER OF STUDENTS ACROSS ALL GRADES 2020-2021

All Students     232    264     269      241     252     265     252      217     199     256     184      183     309     20      3143

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 other total

Indigenous       12       25       30        32       30      30       42       28        31       40       27       20       51     msk     402

Diverse            msk     19       25        26       39      47       57       47       53       64       52       41        81     msk     560
*Other includes elementary ungraded, secondary ungraded, and graduated adults in the school system
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Grade 4 Reading
School District No. 47 measures
its overall progress towards
implementation of it Strategic
and Operational Plan through
the following performance
indicators.

Please see the provincial FESL
Enhancing Student Learning
Report Data for more
information.

Current year and 3-year trend for number and percentage of students in grade 4 and 7 on-track or extending
literacy and numeracy expectation on the Foundational Skills Assessment (FSA).

LITERACY AND NUMERACY EXPECTATIONS GRADE 4 AND 7

Grade 4 Writing Grade 4 Numeracy

Grade 7 Reading Grade 7 Writing Grade 7 Numeracy

The Grade 10 Literacy Assessment and Grade 10 Numeracy Assessment are provincial assessments that assess
student proficiency in literacy and numeracy respectively. It is a graduation requirement and students take the
assessment in their Grade 10 year. 

LITERACY AND NUMERACY EXPECTATIONS GRADE 10 (2019/2020)

All Writers

Indigenous

Diverse

All Writers

Indigenous

Diverse

All Writers

Indigenous

Diverse

All Writers All Writers All Writers

IndigenousIndigenous Indigenous

Diverse Diverse Diverse

58%

41%

40%

55%

53%

36%

69%

58%

38%

79%

69%

50%

63%

46%
50%

75%

53%

42%

50%
39%

27%

53%

40%

46%

54%

32%

31%

72%

60%

42%

66%

67%

71%

73%

50%

50%

79%

89%

50%

86%

81%

75%

86%

78%

71%

45%

24%

19%

69%

56%

58%

60%

36%

38%

2019/2020 Literacy and Numeracy Graduation Assessments

https://prsd47-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/allison_burt_sd47_bc_ca/EQuN1sQVI8RDjODhqlAQdfUBP7CTmXRj_tw2MHIiMpb9RQ?e=nTRc5O
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CONTINUED

GRADE 10 LITERACY ASSESSMENT (2019/2020)

All
Students

Indigenous
Students

Status - Off
Reserve

Status - On
Reserve

Children
Youth In

Care

Disabilities/
Diverse
Abilities

192 26

80% 

60% 

40% 

20% 

0% 
26mskmskmsk

GRADE 10 NUMERACY ASSESSMENT (3-YEAR TREND)

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 
2017/18 2018/19

188 24 491113

192 26 26

School District No. 47 measures
its overall progress towards
implementation of it Strategic
and Operational Plan through
the following performance
indicators.

Please see the provincial FESL
Enhancing Student Learning
Report Data for more
information.

Grade-to-grade transitions is
the percent of students who
make a successful transition to
a higher grade the following
year. 

mskmsk

2019/20

Please note: The three-year trend includes the results for all students only.
The results for other student populations have been masked, including for

Indigenous students, children and youth in care, and students with disabilities
and diverse abilities.

GRADE-TO-GRADE TRANSITION RATE (2019/2020)

192 191 writers 176 writers 187 writers

100% 

75% 

50% 

25% 

0% 

100% 

75% 

50% 

25% 

0% 

100% 

75% 

50% 

25% 

0% 

GRADE 9 GRADE 10 GRADE 11

 All Students (187 students)
 Indigenous Students (28 students)
 Status - Off Reserve (16 students)
 Status - On Reserve (masked)
 Children Youth in Care (masked)
 Disabilities/Diverse Abilities (43 students)

KEY w/ number of students: 

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 6

90% 89% 94%

msk

86%

 All Students (175 students)
 Indigenous Students (27 students)
 Status - Off Reserve (16 students)
 Status - On Reserve (masked)
 Children Youth in Care (masked)
 Disabilities/Diverse Abilities (38 students)

KEY w/ number of students: 

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

 All Students (185 students)
 Indigenous Students (31 students)
 Status - Off Reserve (22 students)
 Status - On Reserve (masked)
 Children Youth in Care (masked)
 Disabilities/Diverse Abilities (43 students)

KEY w/ number of students: 

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

93% 89% 88%

msk

92% 94% 90% 91%

msk

88%

in 2019/2020, the typical range across BC districts was 62% -
77% of all students proficient or extending on the Grade 10
Literacy Assessment. School District 47's results were above
the provincial average.

in 2019/2020, the typical range across BC districts was 24% -
40% of all students proficient or extending on the Grade 10
Numeracy Assessment. School District 47's results were
within the provincial average.

msk

94%
86% 88%

79% 81%

92%

School District No. 47

BC Public Schools

School District No. 47

BC Public Schools

School District No. 47

BC Public Schools

96%
91% 92%

msk

85% 85% 95%

msk

97% 93% 94% 90% 90%
96%

https://portal.sd47.bc.ca/group/rss76ti/Documents/SD%20047%20FESL_Masked_Enhancing%20Student%20Learning%20Report%20Data.pdf
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Portion of resident students in the eligible to graduate cohort who have transitioned to a BC public PSI program in
the year following graduation.

192 26 26

Portion of resident students in the eligible to graduate cohort who have transitioned to a BC public PSI program
within 3 years of graduation.

2014/15

CONTINUED

6 YEAR COMPLETION RATES

Resident
Students

Indigenous
Students

Status - Off
Reserve

Status - On
Reserve

Children
Youth In

Care

Disabilities/
Diverse
Abilities

192 26 26N/AN/AN/A

5 YEAR COMPLETION RATES

Resident
Students

Indigenous
Students

Status - Off
Reserve

Status - On
Reserve

Children
Youth In

Care

Disabilities/
Diverse
Abilities

188 24 49msk11

POST-SECONDARY INSTITUTE (PSI) IMMEDIATE TRANSITION RATE

The six-year and five-year
completion rate is the percent
of students who graduated
with a Certificate of
Graduation or an Adult
Dogwood Diploma, within five
and six years from the first
time they enrol in Grade 8.
Results are adjusted for
student migration in and out of
British Columbia.

80%

65%
70% 66%

44%

msk msk

43%

The transition to post-
secondary institutions rate is
the percentage of students
transitioning to Canadian
post-secondary institutions
within 1 and 3 years.

POST-SECONDARY INSTITUTE (PSI) 3-YEAR TRANSITION RATE

139        45%       143        55%       130        42%All Students
Indigenous Students
Status - Off Reserve
Status - On Reserve
Children Youth in Care
Disabilities/Diverse Abilities

N RATE
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

N NRATE RATE

 msk      msk        17          29%        15         40%
 msk      msk        25         12%        25         12%
 msk      msk       msk      msk      msk      msk
 msk      msk       msk      msk      msk      msk
 20        10%        msk      msk        17        41%

2015/16 2016/17

N RATE N RATE N RATE

All Students
Indigenous Students
Status - Off Reserve
Status - On Reserve
Children Youth in Care
Disabilities/Diverse Abilities

154       66%        138        60%       139       58%
 20        65%         18         50%      msk      msk

 msk      msk       msk      msk      msk      msk
 msk      msk       msk      msk      msk      msk
 20        55%         15         40%       20         20%

 msk      msk       msk      msk      msk      msk

54%      54%       47%All Students
Indigenous Students
Status - Off Reserve
Status - On Reserve
Children Youth in Care
Disabilities/Diverse Abilities

RATE
16/17 17/18 18/19

RATESchool District No. 47 BC Public Schools RATE

37%       39%       31%
36%       37%       31%
44%       47%       34%
47%       41%        37%
41%        42%       34%

68%      68%       66%All Students
Indigenous Students
Status - Off Reserve
Status - On Reserve
Children Youth in Care
Disabilities/Diverse Abilities

RATE
14/15 15/16 16/17

RATERATE

54%      52%       50%
52%       50%      49%
60%       62%      56%
54%       54%      59%
58%       59%      54%

BC Public Schools RATESchool District No. 47
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STUDENT LEARNING SURVEY
The Student Learning Survey is a survey administered annually to grade 4, 7, and 10. Below is a small
sampling of the questions from 2020/2021. Some categories were masked due to small cohorts.

School District No. 47 measures
its overall progress towards
implementation of it Strategic
and Operational Plan through
the following performance
indicators.

Do you feel safe
at school?

Do you feel
welcome at

school?

Do you feel like
you belong?

There are 2 or
more adults who
care about you

at school

13%

36%

14%
24%



LOCAL DATA
In addition to the data collected by the Ministry of Education, School District No. 47
utilizes locally developed data to inform planning for continuous improvement.

Equity in Action
School District No. 47 participated in an Equity in
Action Project and an Equity Scan as a way to
explore and address systemic barriers impacting
Indigenous student achievement. Unfortunately,
COVID-19 severely impacted our efforts to meet
with rightsholders and stakeholder groups. We
limited the Equity in Action process to surveys and
small focus groups to start, but more time without
the restraints of COVID-19 guidelines is needed to
do fully ask the Equity Scan questions effectively
and successfully. The Equity in Action Report
discusses the processes and next steps as we
continue to develop an equity profile and action
plan.

DIBEL's Reading Assessment
The DIBEL's Reading Assessment was implemented
to help identify students who needed additional
support in reading strategies including letter
recognition, phonemic awareness, phonics, sight
words, decoding, and comprehension. Through this
targeted approach, all elementary schools have
seen a reduction in the number of students who
need additional support.

EDI (Early Development Instrument)
The questions on the EDI are designed to measure
core areas of early childhood development that are
good predictors of adult health, education and
social outcomes. Our most recent data results, EDI
Wave 7 Community Profile indicate that the
number of children vulnerable in one or more
scales is slightly higher than the provincial average.
The long term (between waves) downward trends
of increased vulnerabilities in our District are
consistent with Provincial data; changes being
noted in the areas of social competence and
emotional maturity. Our Early Years Planning table
is actively collaborating with community partners
to work towards improvements in these areas.

MDI (Middle Years Development Instrument)
The MDI is a self-report questionnaire completed by
children in Grade 4. It asks them how they think and
feel about their experiences both inside and outside
of school.  As expected, our most recent MDI Data
highlights the significant impact that COVID is
having on your youth. Overall, we have slightly less
children who self report they have a high well being,
and slightly more children who report having a low
well being compared to other participating districts.
Our data highlights a higher percentage of
participants reporting the presence of an asset in
the area of adult relationships. 

Staff Wellness Initiatives
At School District No. 47, we recognize that
supporting wellness initiatives with staff translates
into increased wellness and academic success for
students. The results of some of the initiatives
School District No. 47 participated in were 

HOW ARE WE 
 DOING?

0 10 20 30 40 50

 

 

 

INTELLECTUAL DEVELOPMENT

CAREER DEVELOPMENT

HUMAN AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Graduation Exit Survey
All Grade 12 students in School District 47 were
encouraged to complete the Graduation Exit Survey.
The survey gathered information about students'
plans after high school and their perceptions of the
resources, activities, and supports that helped
prepare them for their future.

The survey was voluntary and emailed to all
parent/guardian and student emails on file. The
participation rate was very low: 15% of Grade 12
students completed the survey. Requiring the
survey to be completed during class time next year
will increase participation rates.  

Of the responses collected, most students indicated
they were planning on entering or continuing in the
workforce in the Fall and attending a post-
secondary institution. The top two job/industry
categories participants indicated and intention to
pursue were Health Care and Social Services and
Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services. 

68% of responses indicated that they were satisfied
or extremely satisfied with the quality of education
they received at their school. More respondents will
provide more accurate information to schools and
School District No. 47 to help inform decision
making.

In addition to the metrics set out by the Ministry of
Education, other performance indicators,
assessments, and evidence are used to measure
the overall progress of School District No. 47
towards the implementation of it Strategic and
Operational Plan. Local assessments and evidence
help us identify literacy, numeracy, and other skill
progress. Observational and conversation data are
also used to help us understand student, staff, and
parent experience as well as specific
misconceptions and mindsets (Safir, 2017).

highlighted in a case study conducted
collaboratively with University of Northern British
Columbia and University of Alberta across several
school districts. 

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/education-training/k-12/administration/program-management/indigenous-education/equity-in-action
https://portal.sd47.bc.ca/group/rss76ti/Documents/SD47%20EIA%20Report.pdf
https://dibels.uoregon.edu/about-dibels
https://portal.sd47.bc.ca/group/rss76ti/Documents/dibels%20assessments_Sept%202020%20to%20June%202021%20District%20Comparision%20Graph.pdf
http://earlylearning.ubc.ca/media/edi_w7_communityprofiles/edi_w7_communityprofile_sd_47.pdf
http://earlylearning.ubc.ca/media/edi_w7_communityprofiles/edi_w7_communityprofile_sd_47.pdf
http://earlylearning.ubc.ca/maps/mdi/nh/sd47/
https://portal.sd47.bc.ca/group/rss76ti/Documents/FINAL%20PRSD%20Case%20Report.pdf


PROJECTED ENROLMENT FOR SEPTEMBER 2021 AND COMPARISON TO 2020-2021

SCHOOL K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 GA 11 12

Secn 

Ungr

TOTAL 

HEADCOUNT 

21-22

TOTAL FTE 

21-22

TOTAL 

HEADCOUNT 

20-21

TOTAL FTE 

20-21

BROOKS 8-12** 785 785.000 692 683.938

EDGEHILL 31 32 30 29 18 25 26 20 211 211.000 198 198.000

HENDERSON 12 7 14 10 17 17 21 15 113 113.000 99 99.000

JAMES THOMSON 35 21 33 35 31 36 35 27 253 253.000 242 242.000

KELLY CREEK 24 23 26 22 17 24 21 11 168 168.000 139 139.000

TEXADA 2 5 3 1 2 2 4 4 23 23.000 23 23.000

WESTVIEW 27 38 37 44 36 53 56 59 350 350.000 317 317.000

SUB TOTAL 131 37 143 141 121 157 163 136 0 0 0 0 0 0 1903 1903.000 1710 1701.938

** Brooks - does not include Cadre or International Students (Cadre:  17 and International:  77)

DL PIE Powell River 311 231.000 1317 1200.375 *

DL PIE Vanc. Isl. 386 310.750

DL PIE Isl. Disc. 643 637.000

TOTAL PIE 1340 1178.750 1317 1200.375

WLC PROGRAMS 17 15.000 26 26.000

CONTINUING ED 0 23 4.375

DISTRICT TOTALS 131 37 143 141 121 157 163 136 0 0 0 0 0 0 3260 3096.750 3076 2932.688

* DL PIE Powell River/Vanc. Isl. and DL Island Discovery is combined in the 2020-2021 comparison data
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                                                  Hockey 

 

School District/Independent School Authority Name: 

School District 47 
School District/Independent School Authority Number: 

 

Developed by: 

Jodi Mastrodonato 
Date Developed: 

June 2021 

School Name: 

Brooks Secondary School 
Principal’s Name: 

Bill Rounis 

Superintendent Approval Date (for School Districts only): 

 
Superintendent Signature (for School Districts only): 

 

Board/Authority Approval Date: 

 
Board/Authority Chair Signature: 

 

Course Name: 

YLRA 10A, 11A, 12A (Hockey 10, 11, 12 ) 
Grade Level of Course: 

10, 11, 12 

Number of Course Credits: 

4 each 
Number of Hours of Instruction: 

120 each 

 

Board/Authority Prerequisite(s): 

N/A 

 

Special Training, Facilities or Equipment Required: 

Special Training: NCCP Coaching Certification, Hockey Canada Skills Development Coach, CATT certified, RIS certification, Certified Fitness 
instruction.  

Other resources: Video, stopwatches, pylons, rebounders, targets, whiteboards, Slideboards, weights, Supplementary training equipment like 
Yoga mats, elastics, boxes, floorball sticks, off ice training balls, nets (mini and regulation), soft boards etc. 

Facilities: Recreation Complex (Hap Parker) Ice during on-ice training sessions as well as the Fitness Center. 

Equipment Required: During on-ice sessions, each student is required to wear complete protective hockey gear as outlined by Hockey Canada 
and follow safety protocols established by PRMHA and the Powell River Rec. Facility and the city. 
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Course Synopsis: 

This course provides hockey players access to additional training and knowledge beyond local minor hockey association activities. The program 
is athlete centered and available to both male/female participants of varied ages and skill levels. Participants will develop hockey skills, 
leadership skills, training and safety knowledge, nutritional information, including health and wellness. Participants will also have opportunities to 
work in leadership roles including peer teaching and instruction, as well as have mentoring from a variety of skilled coaches. Instruction will take 
place during on-ice sessions, off-ice sessions, and in classroom settings. On-ice curriculum focuses on enhancing individual technical skill 
development and situational play including offensive and defensive play. Off-ice curriculum focuses on body coordination, skill development, 
fitness training, recovery methods, injury prevention and rehabilitation as well as overall well-being. 

 

Goals and Rationale: 

The program’s long-term goal is to develop educated citizens who have the knowledge, skills, and understandings they need to be safe, active, 
and healthy citizens throughout their lives. Focusing on both physical education and health education, this program promotes all aspects of well-
being and is intended to enhance students’ enjoyment in a sport that will keep them physically engaged and help maintain a healthy, positive 
lifestyle beyond graduation.  

 

Aboriginal Worldviews and Perspectives: 

This program complements First Peoples perspectives and worldviews and recognizes the importance of balancing all components of well-being 
to maintain a healthy and safe way of life. The First Peoples Principles of Learning lend themselves well to the Physical and Health Education 
curriculum as they promote experiential and reflexive learning, as well as self-advocacy and positive self-identity in learners. They also promote 
the well-being of the self, family, and community, all of which are key elements of the Physical and Health Education curriculum. 

The First Peoples Principles of Learning have been affirmed within First Peoples societies to guide the teaching and learning of provincial 
curricula. Because these principles of learning represent an attempt to identify common elements in the varied teaching and learning approaches 
that prevail within particular First Peoples societies, it must be recognized that they do not capture the full reality of the approach used in any 
single First Peoples society. 

http://www.fnesc.ca/wp/wp-content/uploads/2015/09/PUB-LFP-POSTER-Principles-of-Learning-First-Peoples-poster-11x17.pdf
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Course Name: Hockey 10, 11, 12                                                                                                                            Grade: 10-12 

  

BIG IDEAS 

Physical activity is an 

important part of 

overall health and 

well-being 

 Finding enjoyable 

recreational activities 

can motivate people to 

participate more 

regularly in physical 

activity. 

 Following proper 

training guidelines and 

techniques can help us 

reach our health and 

fitness goals. 

 Safety and injury 

prevention practices 

allow lifelong 

participation in 

physical activities and 

is essential component 

of a healthy lifestyle. 

 Advocating for the health 

and well-being of others 

connects us to our 

community and leads us to 

making healthy choices 

both mentally and 

physically. 

 

Learning Standards 

Curricular Competencies Content 

Students are expected to do the following: 

 

Health and well-being 

• Students will learn recovery techniques. 

• Students will learn fitness techniques and practices applicable to them. 

• Students will learn about the components of fitness. 

• Students will learn coping methods and strategies when faced with adversity or 
other challenges. 

Safety 

Students will practice and follow all safety routines and measures as outlined by Hockey 
Canada, teacher or coach instruction as well as outlines by the facility. 

Students will learn fitness techniques and will practice and implement them. 

Participation 

Students will participate to the best of their ability and will be cooperative, mindful and 
respectful of others including coaches, teachers and other facilitators. 

Leadership  

Students will engage in peer instruction of skills and drills and will create some plans 
and activities. 

Students are expected to know the following by the end: 

-Defensive zone coverage 
-Zone Entries 
-Rush Attack 
-Faceoff plays both defensive and offensive 
-Penalty Kill 
-Power Play 
-Situational plays like Dump and Chase 
-Neutral zone play 
-Systems 
-Stick Handling 
-Passing 
-Shooting 
-Checking 
-Gap control 
-Creating Space 
-1v1, 2v2, 3v3 and odd man attacks and defense 
-Creating of time and space 
-Creation of drills/skills/plans 
-Learn basic fitness and weight room training and components of 
fitness 
-Learn time management 
-Learn Communication skills 
-Learn leadership skills 
-Learn a variety of player skills both on and off the ice 
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Students will be given opportunities for leadership roles with PRMHA programs like First 
Shift and Development sessions. They can use their volunteer hours towards 
Graduation requirements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-Learn nutritional info and basic training skills 
-learn to be good citizens and good teammates 
-Learning to be coachable 
-Learn the technical components of each skill/fundamental 
-Learn a variety of skating techniques, a variety of shooting 
techniques as well as passing techniques 
-learn about excellence, passion and drive and accountability 
-Health and wellness and Nutrition 
-Cross sport training 
-Floorball/Ball Hookey/Floor Hockey and small area games 
-Impact of drugs and alcohol and vaping 
-The Next Level-Which route should I take? 
-Hockey DB-Building a hockey Resume/Player Profile. 
-Self-Analysis-Individual, game play, goals 
-Current events and hockey-the spotlight-trends-social media and 
its positive and negative impact. 
-Old time hockey-the future of hockey-past present and now. 
-Sports injuries-prevention and rehabilitation-return to sport 
-Networking-relationships 
-Off ice training/on ice training 
-Introduction to fitness components and working out-training 
-Training the brain for Success-some readings/articles 
-Hockey movies-discussions 
-habits of highly effective and successful people 
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Big Ideas – Elaborations   

 
Grade 10-Inroductions to all basics including on and off the ice, in the weightroom/training/game play/analysis/fitness/theory 

 

Grade 11-continue developing skills/enhancing game play/refining skills. 

 

Grade 12-leadership and honing all skills learned previous. Coaching opportunities and peer leadership opportunities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Curricular Competencies – Elaborations  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Content – Elaborations  
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Content – Elaborations  

 
 

 
Recommended Instructional Components: 

 

Recommended Assessment Components: Ensure alignment with the Principles of Quality Assessment 

-Proficiency Scale for most formative and summative assessments 

-Individual Self-Assessments 

-Individual Skills and progress reports 

-On ice Skills testing 

-Fitness testing and evaluations to show areas of improvement and areas needing development 

-On-going daily feedback 

-Video analysis and feedback and instruction 

-Participants will receive regular feedback on participation and effort 

 

Learning Resources: Community Resources-Strength and Fitness Training, Yoga, Recovery and Rehabilitation. Hockey Canada Resources-
age and skill development geared to participant’s abilities. Video instruction and analysis. A variety of approved online resources for skill 
development and situational play. Graphic organizers for drills/session planning and fitness tracking. Certified coaching.  

 

Additional Information: 

Participants will be engaged in both on ice and off ice instruction as related to hockey and enhancing their overall fitness, skill development and 
overall health and well-being. They will be expected to follow all safety protocols and participate to their best of their abilities while striving to 
improve in all areas. They will receive enhanced instruction in all areas. They are expected to attend regularly. Students must wear all safety 
gear associated with on ice and off ice training. Students should be prepared and provide a labelled water bottle as well as have fitness gear 
readily available. If a student is injured, they will be provided with supplementary activities geared towards a safe return to play. At the conclusion 
of the term, students will be integrated back into their respective Active Living class at Brooks Secondary to complete the term. 

 

https://curriculum.gov.bc.ca/assessment-info
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Recreation Management 11/12 

 

School District/Independent School Authority Name: 

Powell River  
School District/Independent School Authority Number (e.g. SD43, Authority #432): 

SD47 

Developed by: 

Tony Rice 
Date Developed: 

Sept 01 / 2021 

School Name: 

Brooks Secondary 
Principal’s Name: 

Bill Rounis 

Superintendent Approval Date (for School Districts only): 

 
Superintendent Signature (for School Districts only): 

 

Board/Authority Approval Date: 

 
Board/Authority Chair Signature: 

 

Course Name: 

YLRA11B/YLRA12B (Recreation Management 11/12) 
Grade Level of Course: 

11/12 

Number of Course Credits: 

4 
Number of Hours of Instruction: 

120 

 

Board/Authority Prerequisite(s): 

PE 10 / Permission by instructor through application and interview 

Special Training, Facilities or Equipment Required: 

 

Course Synopsis: This course allows students to become involved in the organization and management of recreational programs. Students will 
develop and apply skills such as leadership, teamwork, goal setting, event planning and activity implementation in a junior PE class as well as 
develop intramural and extra curricular activities. This course supports and encourages students to assist in school/community/ leadership 
opportunities and to explore career options in PHE. 

 

Goals and Rationale: Develop leadership skills in students who can have a positive impact on school culture. Provide students an opportunity to 
develop skills in mentorship and instruction. Develop and nurture leadership and planning skills in other students to enable them to become 
lifelong learners. Provide opportunities for students to act as leaders in a variety of intramural and extracurricular activites. 

 

Aboriginal Worldviews and Perspectives: 
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The First Peoples Principles of Learning have been affirmed within First Peoples societies to guide the teaching and learning of provincial 
curricula. Because these principles of learning represent an attempt to identify common elements in the varied teaching and learning approaches 
that prevail within particular First Peoples societies, it must be recognized that they do not capture the full reality of the approach used in any 
single First Peoples society. 

The First Peoples Principles of Learning greatly influence the curricula and are woven throughout. They lend themselves well to the Physical and 
Health Education curriculum as they promote experiential and reflexive learning, as well as self-advocacy and positive self-identity in learners. 
They also promote the well-being of the self, family, and community, all of which are key elements of the Physical and Health Education 
curriculum. 

 

 

http://www.fnesc.ca/wp/wp-content/uploads/2015/09/PUB-LFP-POSTER-Principles-of-Learning-First-Peoples-poster-11x17.pdf
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Course Name: Recreation Management 11/12  Grade: 

  

BIG IDEAS 

Leadership involves 

problem solving, 

evaluating, reflecting 

when planning and 

leading others. 

 Well-being requires 

finding a balance of 

personal health, 

relationships, work, 

learning, community, 

engagement and 

committed citizenship. 

 Advocating for daily 

participation in physical 

activity can promote a 

healthy lifestyle. 

 Supportive mentoring 

for peers and being a 

positive role model 

develops 

responsibility, 

confidence and mental 

health. 

  

 

 

 

Learning Standards 

Curricular Competencies Content 

 Students are expected to do the following: 

Participation:  

Through participation in course activities students are expected to show and increased 
knowledge and ability in: 

• Leading warm up / stretching activities 

• Drill set up and implementation 

• Administration of facilities and equipment 

• Refereeing / Officiating small game activities 

 

Health and Well Being: 

 

Through participation in course activities, students will demonstrate an increased 
knowledge and ability in: 

•  Principles of fitness and injury prevention 

• Planning of safe / fun / engaging and appropriate PHE activities for class and 
community 

Leadership 

Through participation in course activities, students will demonstrate and increased 
knowledge and ability in: 

Students are expected to know the following: 

Participation: 

Planning / implementing of: 

• Stretching 

• Warm up game activities 

• Small group drill demonstration and instruction 

• Set up of and management of assisted in class game play / 
tournaments 

• Maintenance and allocation of PHE equipment and storage 

 

Health and Well Being 

Demonstrating of: 

• Appropriate and safe behaviours in PHE class 

• Monitoring safe and appropriate interactions between 
students in PHE class. 

• Planning and implementing safe activities for students in 
PHE class. 

Leadership 

Planning / Implementing of: 
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• Intramural activities 

• Community based activities ( Elementary . Town based ) 

• Management of junior aged PE students 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• Intramural activities ( both setting up own and assisting with 
teacher led intramurals ) 

• Assisting with school wide community events  

• Assisting with SD 47 elementary school events and projects 

• Assisting with community based activities requiring help from 
Brooks youth. 
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Big Ideas – Elaborations   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Curricular Competencies – Elaborations  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Content – Elaborations  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Recommended Instructional Components: 
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Instructional components will consider: 

• an appropriate balance of the various learning standards 

• a variety of approaches, including both innovative and “tried and true”  

• activities that draw from and build on prior learning  

• activities that are transferable to other  
 

Recommended Assessment Components: Ensure alignment with the Principles of Quality Assessment 

 

A wide variety of assessment components will be used for both formative assessments and summative assessments, including observations, 
discussions, checklists, rubrics, journals, interviews, reports, projects, peer and self evaluations, quizzes, tests, etc.  

 

Additional Information: 

  

 

https://curriculum.gov.bc.ca/assessment-info
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                                      Community Service 

 

School District/Independent School Authority Name:\ 

Powell River School District 47 
School District/Independent School Authority Number (e.g., SD43, Authority 

#432): 

SD 47 

Developed by: 

Michelle Doyle  
Date Developed: 

September 10, 2021 

School Name: 

Brooks Secondary School 
Principal’s Name: 

Bill Rounis 

Superintendent Approval Date (for School Districts only): 

 
Superintendent Signature (for School Districts only): 

 

Board/Authority Approval Date: 

 
Board/Authority Chair Signature: 

 

Course Name: 

Community Service 11/12 (YCPA 11A/YCPA 12A) 
Grade Level of Course: 

11/12 

Number of Course Credits: 

4 
Number of Hours of Instruction: 

120 

 

Board/Authority Prerequisite(s): 

• Successful completion of Career Life Education 10 (recommended) 

• Grade 11 or 12 student 

• Submission of application form and successful acceptance from Teacher  

• Independent and motivated student 

• No attendance or discipline issues 

 

Special Training, Facilities or Equipment Required: 

None 
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Course Synopsis: 

The Leadership & School Community Service course is based on service volunteered by a student to their school for the benefit of the school 
community. It also encourages and promotes volunteerism in the community beyond school. The experience promotes responsible, caring 
participation in the school community and beyond to their local community. The emphasis is on instilling a sense of personal responsibility with 
others and within themselves and developing the skills and attitudes needed to make a positive contribution to society. Students will acquire a 
sense of responsibility to their school community and learn the benefit of helping others, empathy and understanding of the diverse members of 
our school and community. Students will gain important employability and job skills and experience. The course allows independent and 
motivated students to gain valuable experience in a demonstrated area of interest.  
 

Goals and Rationale: 

Rationale: 

Employability skills, leadership abilities, personal initiative, a sense of social responsibility, respect for the ideas of others, a reflective practice, 
effective work habits and flexibility to deal with change are important skills for students to leave high school with. The Leadership and School 
Community Service course gives students a practical work experience opportunity within their school day that will help to develop these specific 
skills while utilizing the BC core competencies. This experiential course can be used as a part of the progression of Career Education between 
Career Life Education 10 and Career Life Connections 12 curriculum as it gives students the opportunity to put into practice some of the learned 
skills and knowledge. The course may also be drawn from for the CLC12 Capstone project. In addition, students gain valuable work-place 
mentorship from the teacher whom with they are placed.  

 

Because the pace of social, economic, and environmental change is increasing, there is a greater need to enable all students to have essential 
skills, adaptability, global competencies and citizenship, and ultimately successful transition to employment. (BC Educated Citizen) 
 
Goals: 

1) Gain effective communication skills essential in the work environment.  
2) Experience the benefits of collaboration with others towards a common goal.  
3) Develop confidence in own abilities to do productive and important work. 
4) Develop a sense of social responsibility and attitude of volunteerism. 
5) Appreciate the diverse people and roles in a school setting. 
6) Reflect on and refine own work-related skills.  
7) Develop responsibility towards commitment. 
8) Experience self-satisfaction and value in work and in service to others. 
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Aboriginal Worldviews and Perspectives: 

 

The course embodies the following aspects the BC Aboriginal Worldviews and Perspectives document. 

 

Experiential 
Learning 

 

Look for ways to incorporate hands-on learning experiences 
for students into your practice. Embrace learner-centred 
practice and interact with students to ascertain their strengths 
and preferences when it comes to learning experiences. 
Emphasize possible practical applications (e.g., “real-world”) 
when introducing abstract or theoretical concepts.  

The course is implemented as a work experience 
format where each student is placed in a classroom or 
school setting where they are working with students, 
teachers, etc. in practical situations. 

Community 
Involvement 

“An important characteristic of Aboriginal education is 
community involvement in learning. Teachers, children, 
parents, other family members, and other people in the 
community all have a contribution to make”.                  

 participant, Tsaxis  

This course promotes the involvement in one’s own 
community, beginning with the school community. It will 
enable the student to make strong connections with 
other members of the school community that they may 
otherwise not have.   

Local Focus Look for opportunities to incorporate place-based learning 
into your practice. When referencing Aboriginal content, give 
learners a chance to work with locally developed resources 
(including local knowledge keepers) wherever possible.  

 

This course embraces place-based learning int that 
students are learning practical skills within various 
school environments.  

Depending on student choice of volunteer service 
project, they may choose a local location. 
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Course Name: Community Service                                                                                                                         Grade: 11/12 

  

BIG IDEAS 
Communicating –  

 

Communication 

provides a bridge 

between people’s 

learning, their personal 

and social identity, and 

the world in which they 

interact. 

 

 

 
Collaborating –  

 

People who collaborate 

effectively recognize 

how combining other’s 

perspectives, strategies, 

and efforts with their 

own enhances collective 

understanding, use, and 

impact.  

 

 Creative Thinking –  

A creative thinker reflects 

on existing ideas and 

concepts; uses 

imagination, 

inventiveness, 

resourcefulness, and 

flexibility; and is willing 

to take risks to go beyond 

existing knowledge. 

 Critical Thinking –  

Critical thinkers reflect on 

information they receive 

through observation, 

experience, and other forms 

of communication to 

understand and address 

issues, set goals and refine 

thinking. 

 

 Personal Awareness and 

Responsibility –  

People who are personally 

aware and responsible 

demonstrate self-respect, 

persevere in difficult 

situations, and exercise 

responsibility. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Positive Personal and 

Cultural Identity –  

 

People who have a 

positive personal and 

cultural identity value 

their personal and 

cultural narratives and 

understand how they 

shape their identity. 

 

 

          Social Awareness and 

Responsibility – 

 Socially aware responsible 

people support the 

development of welcoming 

and inclusive communities 

where people feel safe and 

have a sense of belonging. 

They show empathy and 

appreciate others’ 

perspectives,  
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Learning Standards 

Curricular Competencies Content 

Students are expected to do the following: 

 

Demonstrate positive workplace and Career Education skills. 

• Engage in a job application process. 

• Develop positive habits of working. 

• Demonstrate initiative towards the goals of the work environment. 

• Make decisions that impact others positively. 

• Prioritize tasks in work environment. 

• Apply a mentor’s guidance and advice. 

• Work independently and productively. 

• Carry out a specified set of tasks. 

• Engage in keeping a community service work log. 

• Produce professional work to meet the expectations of the workplace. 

• Write an effective resume including skills and experiences acquired. 

• Connect experiential learning with possible and preferred career-life pathways. 

• Assess personal transferable skills. 

• Identify strengths and those skills that require further refinement. 

 

Communication & Collaboration 

• Communicate effectively to problem solve, set priorities, make decisions, clarify 

expectations. 

• Communicate effectively with members of the school community (teachers, students, other 

staff) regarding tasks and responsibilities. 

• Communicate effectively in writing when necessary. 

• Collaborate effectively with students, and school staff on work related topics for the 

betterment of the school environment in which they are placed. 

 

Creative & Critical Thinking 

• Make choices about area of interest for service project. 

• Develop and follow-through with a project plan. 

• Reflect on personal performance, strengths, areas of improvement.  

• Reflect on needs of the environment and people within that environment. 

• Show initiative and ideas in meeting the needs of the environment. 

 

Personal & Social Awareness and Responsibility 

• Contribute to a positive learning environment and positive school community. 

• Contribute to an environment of inclusion, safety, and welcome. 

• Express personal interest in service to the greater community and others. 

Students are expected to know the following: 

Appropriate workplace behaviour and habits including: 

• respectful interactions 

• work ethic 

• appropriate use of technology 

• workplace etiquette 

• professional attitude 

• confidentiality 

• punctuality 

• consistent attendance 

• time management 

• taking initiative 

 

Personal strengths and weaknesses. 

 

Specific skills acquired through participation in the course. 

Methods of organization for various tasks. 

Self-assessment and reflection strategies. 

Benefits of active citizenship to self and the community. 

Service needs within the school setting. 

Value of volunteerism and community involvement. 

Opportunities for volunteer opportunities within school, community, 

province, and nation. 
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• Reflect on how their community service benefits the school. 

• Make insightful connections between the community service and how it applies to their 

education, career, and personal goals. 

• Participate in an intentional act of service within the school community. 

• Practice inclusiveness and take diverse perspectives into consideration. 

 

Positive Personal and Cultural Identity 

• Identify personal attributes and cultural identity. 

• Demonstrate positive attitude and respect for diverse populations within the school 

community. 
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Big Ideas – Elaborations   

 

The big ideas are taken directly from the BC Curriculum Core Competencies and developed specifically into goals and learning standards. 

 

 

 

 

Curricular Competencies – Elaborations  

 
 
 
 

 

 

Content – Elaborations  

 

 
 
 
 

 
Recommended Instructional Components: 

This is an experiential course where students will learn through their direct work in a school environment, Teachers will be responsible for 
ongoing mentorship and communication with their student regarding duties to perform, projects, feedback, etc.  

Students participating in the School Community Service course should expect to do the following:  

• Place an application with the teacher or program they wish to work with.  

• Work under the direction and mentorship of the teacher after being accepted.  

• Participate in any required training.  

• Maintain work logs, check lists and reflective journaling. 

• Perform set list of tasks and responsibilities. 

• Be adaptable and flexible for ongoing changing and new tasks. 

• Participate in ongoing mentorship conversations and debriefings with the teacher.  

• Choose an independent service project within the school. 
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Some examples of work placements within a school may be:  

• English Language Learning classrooms 

• International student activities 

• Department/Learning Area Helper  

• Peer Tutor 

• Dramatic performances  

• Recycle Coordinator 

• Extra-curricular Helper 

 

Sample Tasks 

• Design a campaign to promote tolerance and understanding of differences. 

• Set up/maintain a web page for the course/department 

• Implement advertising for upcoming school events 

• Brainstorm project ideas that relate to current lessons in the classroom. 

• Peer tutor students in the classroom 

• Assist in or organize activities and events for students 

• Create school bulletin boards 

• Assist in school responsibilities such as paper and bottle recycling, ice pack making, office paper refills, etc. 

 

Recommended Assessment Components: Ensure alignment with the Principles of Quality Assessment 

 

The primary method of assessment is student reflection and student self-assessment. Because this course embodies the core competencies as 
the foundation of the big ideas, it is important for students to embrace those competencies as experiences that may directly impact their life 
beyond secondary school. By assessing their own growth in the Core Competencies and learning standards, students will take ownership of their 
personal leadership skills and service to others.  The reflective process in this course promotes “personalization, inclusion, diversity and student 
ownership of learning” (Student Reflection and Self-Assessment of Core Competencies, 1).  
 
Formative 

• Weekly reflective journaling 

• Daily work log 

https://curriculum.gov.bc.ca/assessment-info
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• Checklists of tasks 

• Weekly thought-provoking question responses 
 

Summative  

• Oral interview with teacher 

• Personal demonstration of their growth (concept Map, photo journal, PowerPoint, etc.) 

• Self-evaluations using a rubric and proficiency scale for the learning standards 

• School-based or community service project that goes beyond the classroom 
 

Teacher Feedback and Communicating Learning 

• Ongoing communication and debriefing of student work 

• School interim and term/semester reporting 

• Teacher written reference letter that can be used for employment/scholarship applications 

 

Learning Resources: 

Resources specific to the class or area of service that the student is assigned to will vary with placement.  

The following links are initiatives that connect to volunteerism and service opportunity that students may wish to participate in or promote.  

• SD 47 Compassion in Action 

• BC Erase Bullying 

• SD47 Food Literacy 

• Indigenous Activities 

• SD47 International Program 

• SD 47 Sustainable Schools Committee 

 

 

The following links are sites that have information about volunteerism that may be useful. 

 

• Volunteerism 

• Volunteer Canada 

• Volunteer BC 

• Volunteer Powell River 

https://www.sd47.bc.ca/Programs/compassion/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/erase
https://sd47foodliteracy.com/
https://www.sd47.bc.ca/Programs/indgedu/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www2.sd47.bc.ca/international/
https://www.sd47.bc.ca/Programs/sustainability/Pages/ssc.aspx#/=
https://leverageedu.com/blog/what-is-volunteerism-and-why-is-it-important/
https://volunteer.ca/
https://volunteerbc.bc.ca/
https://dosomegood.ca/organization/volunteer-powell-river-350194
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• Brooks Community Service Site (includes samples of course outlines, checklists, etc.) 

 

Books about Volunteerism and Community Service 

• Volunteering: A How-To Guide. by Audrey Borus 

• Be a Changemaker: How to Start Something that Matters By Laurie Anne Thomson 

• The Kids Guide to Service Projects By Barbara A Lewis 

• Chicken Soup for the Volunteer Soul 

 

Additional Information: 

 

https://portal.sd47.bc.ca/class/vnak2zg/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www.thriftbooks.com/a/audrey-borus/770030/


JY/ac 
Adopted by Board of Education – September 22, 2021 

Telephone: 604 485 6271    Fax: 604 485 6435 

 

 

 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47 (POWELL RIVER) 

POWER TO SUSPEND 

2021-2022 

 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS  

• Edgehill –  Ian Landy, Michael Hilleren, Kristen Leigh 
 

• Henderson – Jasmin Marshman, Corey Gordon, Nicole Burnett 
 

• Kelly Creek – Jamie Burt, Andrew Shostak, Jennifer Brander 
 

• James Thomson – Lisa Gunn, Ruth Mackenzie, Dean Thorsell, Jenna Filewich 
 

• Texada – Rhonda Gordon, Dan Doyle 
 

• Westview – Shannon Behan, Jennifer Kennedy, Michelle Shipley 
 

 

SECONDARY SCHOOLS 

• Brooks – Bill Rounis, Tanya Larkin, Matthew Hull, Michelle Doyle 
 

• Brooks Offsite – Oceanview Education Centre – Bill Rounis, Tanya Larkin, Matthew Hull, 
Michelle Doyle, Jason Rae (Head Teacher) 
 

• Oceanview Education Centre – Don Fairbairn, Stephanie Hall, Jody Dendewicz 
 

• Connect-Ed – Bill Rounis, Tanya Larkin, Matthew Hull, Michelle Doyle, James Hanson 
 

• Ahms Tow – Bill Rounis, Tanya Larkin, Matthew Hull, Michelle Doyle, James Hanson 
 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 47 (POWELL RIVER) 

4351 Ontario Avenue, Powell River, BC V8A 1V3 
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47 (POWELL RIVER)  

SECTION 177 - MAINTENANCE OF ORDER       

2021-2022 

 

Persons authorized to "direct" or "require assistance" are the administrative officer(s) for each 

school and the following authorized employees:   

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER(S) OTHER EMPLOYEES 

    
Brooks Secondary Bill Rounis - Principal Tony Rice - Teacher 
 Tanya Larkin - Vice-Principal Pam Ellis – Teacher 
 Michelle Doyle – Vice-Principal Bryce Biasutti - Teacher 
 Matthew Hull – Vice-Principal Chris Young – Custodian 
  Jacquie Scarpelli – Office Manager 
   
 
 
Edgehill Elementary Ian Landy - Principal Michael Hilleren – Vice Principal 
   
 
Henderson Elementary Jasmin Marshman - Principal Corey Gordon - Teacher 
  Nicole Burnett - Teacher 
  Pat Good – Office Manager 
  Brian Burroughs - Custodian 
   
 
James Thomson Elem. Lisa Gunn - Principal Ruth Mackenzie - Teacher 
  Dean Thorsell - Teacher  
  Jenna Filewich - Teacher 
   

 
Kelly Creek Community Jamie Burt - Principal Andrew Shostak – Teacher 
  Jennifer Brander – Teacher 
  Keely Spengler – Office Manager 
  Shayne Lai - Custodian 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 47 (POWELL RIVER) 

4351 Ontario Avenue, Powell River, BC V8A 1V3 
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Texada Elementary                 Rhonda Gordon - Principal Dan Doyle – Teacher 
   
 
Westview Elementary Shannon Behan - Principal               Michelle Shipley – Teacher 
 Jennifer Kennedy – Vice-Principal            

                                                        
 
Oceanview Education  Don Fairbairn – Principal/PIE Jody Dendewicz - Teacher 
Centre Stephanie Hall – Vice Principal/PIE 
 
 
Brooks Offsite Bill Rounis – Principal 
 Tanya Larkin – Vice Principal 
 Jason Rae – Head Teacher 
 Reid Maedel - Teacher 
(Alternate Program @ Oceanview Education Centre on Nootka Avenue)   
 
   
Ahms Tow Bill Rounis – Principal 
 Tanya Larkin – Vice Principal 
 Michelle Doyle – Vice Principal 
 Matthew Hull – Vice Principal 
 James Hanson - Teacher 
 Tyler Peters – Teacher 
 Louise Dominick – Support Worker 
 
 
District Jay Yule - Superintendent of Schools 
 Steve Hopkins – Secretary Treasurer  
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 
  

2020-2021  
Financial Statement Discussion & Analysis 
 
Prepared by Steve Hopkins 
 
www.sd47.bc.ca 
4351 Ontario Avenue 
Powell River, BC V8A 1V3 
 

The information here is intended to provide a brief overview of the 
years financial statements. The statements themselves are 

organized into statements, notes and schedules. Schedule 2 
documents provide information related to the operating fund. 

Schedule 3 the Special Purpose Funds and 4 the Capital. 
 

This summary is focused on the operating spending while 
highlighting other aspects of the operations. 

 

Salaries 
Teachers      11,523,292 
Principals and Vice Principals       1,697,346 
Educational Assistants      1,900,703 
Support Staff       2,484,387 
Other Professionals      1,665,643 
Substitutes           983,921 
Total Salaries                   20,255,292 
 
Employee Benefits                4,597,570 
Total Salary and Benefits                 24,852,862 
 
Services and Supplies 
Services       3,728,167 
Student Transportation                     7,181 
Professional development and Travel           185,522 
Rentals and Leases          296,850 
Dues and Fees              213,555 
Insurance              81,498 
Supplies       3,167,020 
Utilities               636,715 
Total Service and Supplies                        8,316,508 

 

Total Operating Expense       33,169,370 
 

Operational Spending ($) 
 
 

Special Purpose 
Fund Summary 
 

These funds are all independent of one another, 
each fund has specific criteria regarding the nature 
of the spending with most governed by contracts 
that layout the various deliverables associated with 
each. 
 
School Generated Funds – Represent money 
flowing through schools outside of the accounting 
system and consolidated for the purpose of 
financial statement presentation.  
 
Examples: Terry Fox Donations, Jump Rope for 
Heart, Field Trips, Merchandise Sales, etc. 
 
Total Revenue and Spending of approximately $0.7 
million dollars 
 
Classroom enhancement Fund - $ 2.2 million for 
approximately 18 additional teachers intended to 
reduce class sizes and provide for additional 
ancillary supports such as learning assistance and 
counselling. 
 
Safe Return to Schools - $ 1.2 million dollars in 
COVID relief funding from the Provincial and 
Federal Governments to assist in managing the 
additional costs associated with the health 
pandemic.  
 

http://www.sd47.bc.ca/


 
 

 

Operating Funding 
 
 

Ministry of Education   $ 32,921 
Other Provincial Grants            128 
Tuition              517  
Other Revenue                         1,179 
Rental Income             127 
Interest                                28
                                         $34,900 
 
 

Student Enrollment (FTE) 
 
Standard      1,701 
Continuing Ed & Alternate            9 
Distributed Learning     1,230 
      2,940 
 

Regular Staffing (FTE)  
 181 Educators 

  107 Support Staff 

    22 Other Staff 
 

Capital Fund Summary 
 

School Enhancement (SEP) $500,000 
Carbon Neutral (CNCP)   $241,000 
Universal Playground (PEP)  $125,000 
Bus Acquisition (BUS)   $177,903 
Annual Facility Grant (AFG)  $481,348  
Local Capital    $607,472 
 

 
Internally Restricted (appropriated) by Board for:    2021 
School & Program Based Resources: 

Technology Initiatives 
Learning Loss - MOE 
COVID Strategies 
Student Achievement Initiatives 
Committee Initiatives 
Policy Review & Update 
Elem. VP & District Indigenous Principal 
Teacher Mentorship 
Student Furniture 
School Resources Carried Forward 
Contingency Fund                                    

 
$62,500 
104,642 
300,690 
205,788 

30,000 
50,000 
89,042 
45,671 
75,000 

198,831 
275,000 

    
    Subtotal Internally Restricted Operating Surplus   1,437,164 

  
Unrestricted Operating Surplus  

 
Local Capital: 
Replacement Fund for Artificial Playfield  
Ongoing Investment into OLC 
Equipment & Playground Replacement Fund 
Two Portables for Brooks Secondary 
Outdoor Furniture 
 

1,272,874 
               

 
384.500 

75,000 
125,483 
427,300 
46,450 

1,058,733 
 

 

Funds Available for Future Operations 
 

Total Revenue 
$42,742 

 

Accumulated 
Surplus 
$13,364 

 
 

Total Expenses 
$41,281 
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School District No. 47 (Powell River)

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

On behalf of School District No. 47 (Powell River)

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer Date Signed

The accompanying financial statements of School District No. 47 (Powell River) have been prepared by 

management in accordance with the accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and 

Accountability Act of British Columbia, supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the 

Province of British Columbia Treasury Board, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are 

management's responsibility.  Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and 

schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained 

in the financial statements.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide 

reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and reliable financial 

information is produced.

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's 

judgment particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty 

until future periods.

The Board of Education of School District No. 47 (Powell River) (called the ''Board'') is responsible for ensuring 

that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and exercises these 

responsibilities through the Board.  The Board reviews internal financial statements on a monthly basis and 

externally audited financial statements yearly.

Version: 6239-5493-3510

The external auditors, MNP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally 

accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements.  The external auditors have 

full and free access to financial management of School District No. 47 (Powell River) and meet when required.  

The accompanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination 

and their opinion on the School District's financial statements.

Date Signed

Date Signed

Page 1 September 17, 2021  16:44
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       T: 250.287.2131   F: 250.287.2134   MNP.ca 

LLP - NANAIMO - 345 WALLACE STREET

 
Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Board of Education of School District No. 47 (Powell River) and the Minister of Education: 

 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of School District No. 47 (Powell River) (the “School District”), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, and the statements of operations, 
statement of changes in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present the financial position of the School District as at June 30, 2021 
and the results of its operations, remeasurement gains and losses, changes in net debt and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in compliance with, in all material respects, the financial reporting framework based on 
Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act and the Province of British Columbia’s 
Treasury Board Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011. 
 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the School District in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for opinion.  
 

Emphasis of Matter 
We draw attention to Note 2 which describes the financial reporting framework being followed by School District 
No. 47 (Powell River). 
 

Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor’s 
report comprises of Unaudited Schedules 1-4 attached to the audited financial statements and Financial 
Statement Discussion and Analysis but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s 
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the financial reporting framework based on Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act 
and the Province of British Columbia’s Treasury Board Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the School District’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management intends to liquidate the School District or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the School District’s financial reporting process.  
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements.  
 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School District’s internal control 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the School District’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the School District to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 
 
 
 
September 22, 2021 
  
 
Campbell River, BC Chartered Professional Accountants 
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Statement 1

2021 2020

Actual Actual

$ $

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,418,399          6,420,916          

Accounts Receivable

Due from Province - Ministry of Education 142,338             -                         

Other (Note 3) 186,313             137,426             

Total Financial Assets 7,747,050          6,558,342          

Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Other (Note 4) 2,196,740          2,373,754          

Unearned Revenue (Note 9) 515,518             324,083             

Deferred Revenue (Note 6) 568,191             573,196             

Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 7) 37,413,838        37,504,271        

Employee Future Benefits (Note 8) 788,119             729,268             

Total Liabilities 41,482,406        41,504,572        

Net Debt (33,735,356)       (34,946,230)       

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible Capital Assets (Note 10) 47,009,412        46,765,129        

Prepaid Expenses 90,289               84,327               

Total Non-Financial Assets 47,099,701        46,849,456        

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) (Note 18) 13,364,345        11,903,226        

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2021

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

Approved by the Board

Contingent Liabilities (Note 11)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 6239-5493-3510
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Statement 2

2021 2021 2020

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 37,237,168        38,357,190        31,807,678        

Other 88,400               128,300             101,100             

Tuition 420,000             516,651             1,062,276          

Other Revenue 2,557,947          1,965,962          2,593,422          

Rentals and Leases 97,900               126,654             217,446             

Investment Income 30,000               31,459               52,239               

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,585,275          1,615,684          1,599,999          

Total Revenue 42,016,690        42,741,900        37,434,160        

Expenses

Instruction 33,917,023        32,361,264        28,813,537        

District Administration 1,540,590          1,429,836          1,227,502          

Operations and Maintenance 5,822,640          6,366,277          5,246,843          

Transportation and Housing 1,125,578          1,123,404          1,110,605          

Total Expense 42,405,831        41,280,781        36,398,487        

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (389,141)            1,461,119          1,035,673          

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, beginning of year 11,903,226        10,867,553        

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, end of year 13,364,345        11,903,226        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 6239-5493-3510
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Statement 4

2021 2021 2020

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17)

$ $ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (389,141)            1,461,119          1,035,673          

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (500,000)            (2,132,723)         (1,248,673)         

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,854,799          1,888,440          1,928,693          

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets 1,354,799          (244,283)            680,020             

Use of Prepaid Expenses -                         (5,962)                137,029             

Total Effect of change in Other Non-Financial Assets -                         (5,962)                137,029             

(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt, before Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) 965,658             1,210,874          1,852,722          

Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt 1,210,874          1,852,722          

Net Debt, beginning of year (34,946,230)       (36,798,952)       

Net Debt, end of year (33,735,356)       (34,946,230)       

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Changes in Net Debt

Year Ended June 30, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 6239-5493-3510
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Statement 5

2021 2020

Actual Actual

$ $

Operating Transactions

Surplus (Deficit) for the year 1,461,119         1,035,673         

Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital

Decrease (Increase)

Accounts Receivable (191,225)          69,279              

Prepaid Expenses (5,962)              137,029            

Increase (Decrease)

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (177,014)          502,089            

Unearned Revenue 191,435            (311,288)          

Deferred Revenue (5,005)              415,231            

Employee Future Benefits 58,851              93,071              

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,888,440         1,928,693         

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue (1,615,684)       (1,599,999)       

Total Operating Transactions 1,604,955         2,269,778         

Capital Transactions

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (2,132,723)       (1,248,673)       

Total Capital Transactions (2,132,723)       (1,248,673)       

Financing Transactions

Capital Revenue Received 1,525,251         1,216,348         

Total Financing Transactions 1,525,251         1,216,348         

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 997,483            2,237,453         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 6,420,916         4,183,463         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 7,418,399         6,420,916         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year, is made up of:

Cash 7,418,399         6,420,916         

7,418,399         6,420,916         

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 6239-5493-3510
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POWELL RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION  
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47  

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 

 

 

 Page 7 of 28 June 2021 

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 
   

 
The School District, operates under authority of the School Act of British Columbia as a corporation 
under the name of "The Board of Education of School District No. 47 (Powell River)", and operates 
as "School District No. 47 (Powell River)."  A board of education (“Board”) elected for a four-year 
term governs the School District.  The School District provides educational programs to students 
enrolled in schools in the district, and is principally funded by the Province of British Columbia 
through the Ministry of Education. School District No. 47 (Powell River) is exempt from federal 
and provincial corporate income taxes. 
 
The COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization in March 
2020 and has had a significant financial, market and social dislocating impact worldwide.  Under 
direction of the Provincial Health Officer, all schools suspended in-class instruction in March 2020 
and the District remained open to continue to support students and families in a variety of ways.  
Parents were given the choice to send their children back to school on a gradual and part-time basis 
beginning June 1, 2020 and full-time beginning Sept 1, 2020 with new health and safety guidelines.  
The ongoing impact of the pandemic presents uncertainty over future cash flows, may have a 
significant impact on future operations including decreases in revenue, impairment of receivables, 
reduction in investment income and delays in completing capital project work.  As the situation is 
dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact are not known, an estimate of the 
future financial effect on the District is not practicable at this time. 
 
 
NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
a) Basis of Accounting  

 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget 
Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia. This Section requires 
that the financial statements be prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards except in regard to the accounting for government transfers as set out in Notes 2(e) 
and 2(l).  
 
In November 2011, Treasury Board provided a directive through Restricted Contributions 
Regulation 198/2011 providing direction for the reporting of restricted contributions whether 
they are received or receivable by the School District before or after this regulation was in 
effect.  
 
As noted in notes 2(e) and 2(l), Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act 
and its related regulations require the School District to recognize government transfers for the 
acquisition of capital assets into revenue on the same basis as the related amortization expense.  
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

a) Basis of Accounting (cont’d) 
 

As these transfers do not contain stipulations that create a liability, Canadian public sector 
accounting standards would require that: 
 

 government transfers, which do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability, be 
recognized as revenue by the recipient when approved by the transferor and the 
eligibility criteria have been met in accordance with public sector accounting standard 
PS3410; and 

 
 externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which the 

resources are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with public sector 
accounting standard PS3100. 

 
The impact of this difference on the financial statements of the School District is as follows: 
 
Year-ended June 30, 2020 – increase in annual surplus by $383,651 
June 30, 2020 – increase in accumulated surplus and decrease in deferred contributions by 
$37,504,271 
Year-ended June 30, 2021 – decrease in annual surplus by $90,433 
June 30, 2021 – increase in accumulated surplus and decrease in deferred contributions by 
$37,413,838 

 
b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid securities that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.  These 
cash equivalents generally have a maturity of three months or less at acquisition and are held for 
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investing. 
 

c) Accounts Receivable 
 
 Accounts receivables are measured at amortized cost and shown net of allowance for doubtful 

accounts. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

POWELL RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION  
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47  

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 

 

 

 Page 9 of 28 June 2021 

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
d) Unearned Revenue 

 
Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods and 
receipt of proceeds for services or products to be delivered in a future period. Revenue will be 
recognized in that future period when the courses, services, or products are provided. 

 
e) Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue 

 
Deferred revenue includes contributions received with stipulations that meet the description of 
restricted contributions in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury 
Board. When restrictions are met, deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in 
a manner consistent with the circumstances and evidence used to support the initial recognition 
of the contributions received as a liability as detailed in Note 2 (l). 

 
Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as deferred 
capital revenue and amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the statement of 
operations.  This accounting treatment is not consistent with the requirements of Canadian 
public sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be recognized as 
revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met unless the 
transfer contains a stipulation that creates a liability in which case the transfer is recognized as 
revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished.  See note 2 (a) for the impact of this 
policy on these financial statements. 
 

f) Prepaid Expenses 
 
Insurance premiums, and software licensing and support, are included as a prepaid expense and 
stated at acquisition cost and are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit from it.  

 
g) Funds and Reserves 

 
Certain amounts, as approved by the Board are set aside in accumulated surplus for future 
operating and capital purposes. Transfers to and from funds and reserves are an adjustment to 
the respective fund when approved (see Notes 13 – Interfund Transfers and Note 18 – 
Accumulated Surplus).  
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
h) Employee Future Benefits 
 

The School District provides certain post-employment benefits including vested and non-vested 
benefits for certain employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements. The School 
District accrues its obligations and related costs including both vested and non-vested benefits 
under employee future benefit plans. Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-
vested sick leave, early retirement, retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits. 
The benefits cost is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method pro-rated on 
service and using management’s best estimate of expected salary escalation, termination rates, 
retirement rates and mortality. The discount rate used to measure obligations is based on the cost 
of borrowing. The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the 
expected average remaining service lifetime of active employees covered under the plan.   
 
The most recent valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2019 and projected  
to March 31, 2022. The next valuation will be performed at March 31, 2022 for use at  
June 30, 2022. For the purposes of determining the financial position of the plans and the 
employee future benefit costs, a measurement date of March 31 was adopted for all periods 
subsequent to July 1, 2004. 
 
The School district and its employees make contributions to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and 
Municipal Pension Plan.  The plans are multi-employer plans where assets and obligations are 
not separated. The costs are expensed as incurred. 

 
 

i) Liability for Contaminated Sites  
 
Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or 
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an 
environmental standard.  The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability for 
remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use and all the 
following criteria are met: 
 

 an environmental standard exists; 
 contamination exceeds the environmental standard; 
 the School District: 

o is directly responsible; or 
o accepts responsibility;  

 it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 
 a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

i) Liability for Contaminated Sites (cont’d) 
 
The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including operation, 
maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy for a contaminated site. 
 

j) Measurement Uncertainty 
 

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting described in note 
2 a) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that impact reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the 
reporting periods. Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the 
potential impairment of assets, liabilities for contaminated sites, rates for amortization and 
estimated employee future benefits.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
 

k) Tangible Capital Assets 
 
The following criteria apply: 

 Tangible capital assets acquired or constructed are recorded at cost which includes 
amounts that are directly related to the acquisition, design, construction, development, 
improvement or betterment of the assets. Cost also includes overhead directly 
attributable to construction as well as interest costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or construction of the asset. 

 Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date of 
donation, except in circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined, 
which are then recognized at nominal value. Transfers of capital assets from related 
parties are recorded at carrying value.  

 Work-in-progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable asset class at substantial 
completion. 

 Tangible capital assets are written down to residual value when conditions indicate they 
no longer contribute to the ability of the School District to provide services or when the 
value of future economic benefits associated with the sites and buildings are less than 
their net book value. The write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the Statement of 
Operations. 

 Buildings that are demolished or destroyed are written-off. 
 Works of art, historic assets and other intangible assets are not recorded as assets in these 

financial statements. 
 The cost, less residual value, of tangible capital assets (excluding sites), is amortized on a 

straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. It is management’s 
responsibility to determine the appropriate useful lives for tangible capital assets. These 
  



 

 
 
 
 

POWELL RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION  
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47  

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 

 

 

 Page 12 of 28 June 2021 

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

k) Tangible Capital Assets (cont’d) 
 
useful lives are reviewed on a regular basis or if significant events initiate the need to 
revise. Estimated useful life is as follows: 
 

Buildings 40 years 
Furniture & Equipment 10 years 
Vehicles 10 years 
Computer Software 5 years 
Computer Hardware 5 years 

 
l) Revenue Recognition 

 

Revenues are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transactions or events 
occurred that gave rise to the revenues, the amounts are considered to be collectible and can be 
reasonably estimated. 

 
Contributions received or where eligibility criteria have been met are recognized as revenue 
except where the contribution meets the criteria for deferral as described below. Eligibility 
criteria are the criteria that the School District has to meet in order to receive the contributions 
including authorization by the transferring government. 
 
For contributions subject to a legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to their use, 
revenue is recognized as follows: 
 

 Non-capital contributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and 
recognized as revenue in the year related expenses are incurred, 

 Contributions restricted for site acquisitions are recorded as revenue when the sites are 
purchased, and 

 Contributions restricted for tangible capital assets acquisitions other than sites are 
recorded as deferred capital revenue and amortized over the useful life of the related 
assets.  

 
Donated tangible capital assets other than sites are recorded at fair market value and amortized 
over the useful life of the assets. Donated sites are recorded as revenue at fair market value when 
received or receivable. 

 
The accounting treatment for restricted contributions is not consistent with the requirements of 
Canadian public sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be 
recognized as revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met.  
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

l) Revenue Recognition (cont’d) 
 
unless the transfer contains a stipulation that meets the criteria for liability recognition in which 
case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished.  See 
note 2(a) for the impact of this policy on these financial statements. 
 
Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service is 
performed is deferred and recognized when the fee is earned or service performed. 
 
Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding party or 
related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the deferred revenue 
balance. 
 

m) Expenditures 
 
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services received 
during the year is expensed. 

 
 Categories of Salaries 

 Principals, Vice-Principals, and Directors of Instruction employed under an 
administrative officer contract are categorized as Principals and Vice-Principals. 

 Superintendents, Assistant Superintendents, Secretary-Treasurers, Trustees and other 
employees excluded from union contracts are categorized as Other Professionals. 

 
Allocation of Costs  

 Operating expenses are reported by function, program, and object. Whenever possible, 
expenditures are determined by actual identification. Additional costs pertaining to 
specific instructional programs, such as special and aboriginal education, are allocated to 
these programs. All other costs are allocated to related programs. 

 Actual salaries of personnel assigned to two or more functions or programs are allocated 
based on the time spent in each function and program.  School-based clerical salaries are 
allocated to school administration and partially to other programs to which they may be 
assigned. Principals and Vice-Principals salaries are allocated to school administration 
and may be partially allocated to other programs to recognize their other responsibilities. 

 Employee benefits and allowances are allocated to the same programs, and in the same 
proportions, as the individual’s salary. 

 Supplies and services are allocated based on actual program identification. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
n) Financial Instruments  

 
A contract establishing a financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights and obligations to 
receive or deliver economic benefits. The financial assets and financial liabilities portray these 
rights and obligations in the financial statements. The School District recognizes a financial 
instrument when it becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.  
 
Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities, and other liabilities. 
 
All financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or amortized cost and the associated 
transaction costs are added to the carrying value of these investments upon initial recognition 

and amortized using the effective interest rate method. Transaction costs are incremental costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or a financial liability.  

 
Unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments are 
recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. Upon settlement, the cumulative 
gain or loss is reclassified from the statement of remeasurement gains and losses and recognized 
in the statement of operations. Interest and dividends attributable to financial instruments are 
reported in the statement of operations. There are no measurement gains or losses during the 
periods presented; therefore, no statement of remeasurement gains or losses is included in these 
financial statements. 
 
All financial assets except derivatives are tested annually for impairment. When financial assets 
are impaired, impairment losses are recorded in the statement of operations. A write-down of a 
portfolio investment to reflect a loss in value is not reversed for a subsequent increase in value.  
  
For financial instruments measured using amortized cost, the effective interest rate method is 
used to determine interest revenue or expense.  
 

 
o) Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses 

 
A statement of re-measurement gains and losses has not been presented as the District does not 
hold any financial assets or liabilities that would give rise to remeasurement gains or losses. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
p) Future Changes in Accounting Policies 

 

PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations issued August 2018 establishes standards for 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of legal obligations associated with the 
retirement of tangible capital assets and is effective July 1, 2022. A liability will be recognized 
when, as at the financial reporting date: 

(a)     there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset; 

(b)     the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred; 

(c)     it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 

(d)     a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 
  

Liabilities are recognized for statutory, contractual or legal obligations associated with the 
retirement of tangible capital assets when those obligations result from the acquisition, 
construction, development or normal operation of the assets. The obligations are measured 
initially at fair value, determined using present value methodology, and the resulting costs 
capitalized into the carrying amount of the related tangible capital asset. In subsequent periods, 
the liability is adjusted for accretion and any changes in the amount or timing of the underlying 
future cash flows. The capitalized asset retirement cost is amortized on the same basis as the 
related asset and accretion expense is included in the [Consolidated] Statement of Operations.  
 

A modified retroactive application has been recommended by Government.  Management is in 
the process of assessing the impact of adopting this standard on the School District’s financial 
results. 

PS 3400 Revenue issued November 2018 establishes standards on how to account for and report 
on revenue and is effective July 1, 2023. Specifically, it differentiates between revenue arising 
from transactions that include performance obligations, referred to as "exchange transactions", 
and transactions that do not have performance obligations, referred to as "non-exchange 
transactions". 

Revenue from transactions with performance obligations should be recognized when (or as) 
the school district satisfies a performance obligation by providing the promised goods or services 
to a payor. 

Revenue from transactions with no performance obligations should be recognized when a school 
district: 

 (a)     has the authority to claim or retain an inflow of economic resources; and 
 (b)     identifies a past transaction or event that gives rise to an asset. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

p) Future Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

This standard may be applied retroactively or prospectively.  Management is in the process of 
assessing the impact of adopting this standard on the School District’s financial results 

 
 
NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER 
 
 2021 2020 

   
Due from Federal Government $67,119 

 
$53,400 

 
Due from Others 119,194 84,026 

   
 $186,313 $137,426 

 
 
 
NOTE 4 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES – OTHER 
 
 2021 2020 
   
Trade and other payables  $695,782 $1,006,974 
Salaries and benefits payable 81,268 17,495 
Deductions Payable 1,419,690 1,349,285 
   
 $2,196,740 $2,373,754 

 
 
 
NOTE 5 EXPENSE BY OBJECT 
  2021 

 

 2020 
 

Salaries  $23,555,174 $20,893,083 
Benefits 5,266,833 4,729,790 
Services and supplies 10,570,334 8,846,921 
Amortization 1,888,440 1,928,693 
 $41,280,781 $36,398,487 
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NOTE 6 DEFERRED REVENUE 
 
Deferred revenue includes unspent grants and contributions received that meet the description of a 
restricted contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury 
Board, i.e., the stipulations associated with those grants and contributions have not yet been 
fulfilled. Detailed information about the changes in deferred revenue are as follows:  

 
 

2021  
 

2020 
    
Balance, beginning of year $   573,196   $157,965 

Increases: 
   Provincial Grant – Ministry of Ed 

                   
$5,494,664   

                   
$4,394,728 

       Federal Grants      -            - 
Other 723,302    1,653,509 
Investment income                          

 6,217,966    6,048,237  
Decreases:    

       Transfers to Revenue 6,222,971   5,633,006  
    

Net Changes for the year 5,005   415,231 
    
Balance, end of the year $568,191    $   573,196   
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NOTE 7  DEFERRED CAPITAL REVENUE 
 
Deferred capital revenue includes grants and contributions received that are restricted by the 
contributor for the acquisition of tangible capital assets that meet the description of a restricted 
contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. Once 
spent, the contributions are amortized into revenue over the life of the asset acquired. Detailed 
information about the changes in deferred capital revenue is as follows: 
  
         

 

           
Deferred Cap 

Revenue 

   Unspent 
Def. Cap 
Revenue 

Total        
2021  2020 

Balance, beginning of year $37,504,271 $   - $ 37,504,271  37,887,922 
Increases:      

Transfers from DC - capital additions         1,525,251  1,525,251  1,216,348 
      

      

Provincial Grants – MEd  1,525,251      1,525,251  1,216,348 

 
  

1,525,251 
   

1,525,251 3,050,502  2,432,696 
Decreases:      

Amortization         1,615,684  1,615,684  1,599,999 
Transfers to DCR - Capital Additions       1,525,251   1,525,251  1,216,348 

      

 Net 
       

(90,433) 
 

-    (90,433)    (383,651) 
      

 
Balance, end of the year 

   
 

$37,413838 

                                           
 

$    - $ 37,413,838  $ 37,504,271 
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NOTE 8  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
 
Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement, 
retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits. Funding is provided when the benefits 
are paid and accordingly, there are no plan assets.  Although no plan assets are uniquely identified, 
the School District has provided for the payment of these benefits.  
 
 

 2021 2020 
Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation 

Accrued Benefit Obligation – April 1  $837,805 $824,910 
Service Cost 69,999 66,407 
Interest Cost 19,693 21,158 
Benefit Payments (53,660) (37,502) 
Increase (Decrease) in obligation due to Plan Amendment - - 
Actuarial (Gain) Loss (27,035) (37,618) 
Accrued Benefit Obligation – March 31 $846,802 $837,805 

 
Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Fiscal Year 

Accrued Benefit Obligation – March 31 $846,802 $837,805 
Market Value of Plan Assets – March 31 - - 
Funded Status – Surplus (Deficit) (846,802) (837,805) 
Employer Contributions After Measurement Date 6,834 - 
Benefits Expense After Measurement Date (22,967) (22,423) 
Unamortized Net Actuarial (Gain) Loss 74,816 130,960 
Accrued Benefit Asset (Liability) – June 30 $(788,119) $(729,268) 

 
Reconciliation of Change in Accrued Benefit Liability 

Accrued Benefit Liability – July 1  $729,268 $636,197 
Net expense for Fiscal Year 119,345 123,346 
Employer Contributions (60,494) (30,274) 
Accrued Benefit Liability – June 30 $788,119 $729,268 
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NOTE 8  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
 

 2021 2020 
Components of Net Benefit Expense 

Service Cost $69,942 $67,305 
Interest Cost 20,295 20,792 
Amortization of Net Actuarial Loss 29,109 35,249 
Net Benefit Expense $119,345 $123,346 

 
The significant actuarial assumptions adopted for measuring the School District’s accrued benefit 
obligations are:  
 

Discount Rate – April 1 2.25% 2.50% 
Discount Rate – March 31 2.50% 2.25% 
Long Term Salary Growth – April 1 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority 
Long Term Salary Growth – March 31 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority 
EARSL – March 31 
 

9.7 9.7 

 
 
NOTE 9 UNEARNED REVENUE 

 2021 2020 
Balance, beginning of year $324,083 $635,371 
Changes for the year:   
 Increase:   
        Tuition fees  505,792 322,930 
        Rental/Lease of facilities 9,726 6,153 
        
 515,518 329,083 

 Decrease:   
        Tuition fees  308,670 630,765 
        Rental/Lease of facilities 15,413 9,606 
 324,083 640,371 
        

Net changes for the year 191,435 (311,288) 
Balance, end of year $515,518 $324,083 
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NOTE 10 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 
  

 
Net Book Value: 

 
Net Book Value 

2021 
Net Book Value 

2020 

Sites $4,151,237 $4,038,922 
Buildings 41,298,717 41,250,642 
Furniture & Equipment 856,439 769,814 
Vehicles 628,131 576,722 
Computer Software 22,333 38,663 
Computer Hardware 52,555 90,366 
   
Total $47,009,412 $46,765,129 

 
June 30, 2021 

 Opening Cost Additions Disposals 
 
 

Total 
 2021 

Sites $4,038,922 $112,315 $-  $4,151,237 
Buildings 68,269,579 1,610,033 -  69,879,612 
Buildings – work in progress      
Furniture & Equipment 1,334,285 220,054 40,910  1,513,429 
Vehicles 1,389,116 190,321 -  1,579,437 
Computer Software 81,651 - -  81,651 
Computer Hardware 189,056 - 51,060  137,996 
      
Total $75,302,609 $2,132,723 $91,970  $77,343,362 

 

 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Amortization Additions Disposals 

Total  
 2021 

Sites $ $ $ $ 
Buildings 27,018,937 1,561,958 - 28,580,895 
Furniture & Equipment 564,471 133,429 40,910 656,990 
Vehicles 812,394 138,912 - 951,306 
Computer Software 42,988 16,330 - 59,318 
Computer Hardware 98,690 37,811 51,060 85,441 
     
Total $28,537,480 $1,888,440 $91,970 $30,333,950 
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NOTE 10 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
 
June 30, 2020 

 Opening Cost Additions Disposals 
 Total 

 2020 

Sites $4,038,922 $- $-  $4,038,922 
Buildings 67,053,231 1,216,348 -  68,269,579 
Buildings – work in progress      
Furniture & Equipment 1,457,091 28,446 151,252  1,334,285 
Vehicles 1,496,166 3,879 110,929  1,389,116 
Computer Software 103,495 - 21,844  81,651 
Computer Hardware 372,365 - 183,309  189,056 
      
Total $74,521,270 $1,248,673 $467,334  $75,302,609 

 

 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Amortization Additions Disposals 

Total  
 2020 

Sites $ $ $ $ 
Buildings 25,480,742 1,538,195  27,018,937 
Furniture & Equipment 570,014 145,709 151,252 564,471 
Vehicles 773,706 149,617 110,929 812,394 
Computer Software 44,133 20,699 21,844 42,988 
Computer Hardware 207,526 74,473 183,309 98,690 
     
Total $27,076,121 $1,928,693 $467,334 $28,537,480 

 
 

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES 
 
Ongoing Legal Proceedings 
 
In the ordinary course of operations, the School District has legal proceedings brought against it and 
provision has been included in liabilities where appropriate. It is the opinion of management that 
final determination of these claims will not have a material effect on the financial position or 
operations of the School District. 
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NOTE 12  EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS  
 

The School District and its employees contribute to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal Pension 

Plan (jointly trusteed pension plans). The boards of trustees for these plans, representing plan members 
and employers, are responsible for administering the pension plans, including investing assets and 

administering benefits. The plans are multi-employer defined benefit pension plans. Basic pension 

benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2018, the Teachers’ Pension Plan has about 48,000 

active members and approximately 38,000 retired members. As of December 31, 2018, the Municipal 

Pension Plan has about 205,000 active members, including approximately 26,000 from school districts.  

 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plans and 

adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member 

contribution rate to fund the plans. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age 

normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer contributions 

sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plans. This rate may be adjusted for the 

amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded 
actuarial liability. 

 

The most recent actuarial valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Plan as at December 31, 2017, indicated a 

$1,656 million surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. As a result of the 2017 basic 

account actuarial valuation surplus, plan enhancements and contribution rate adjustments were made; 
the remaining $644 million surplus was transferred to the rate stabilization account. 

 

The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2018, indicated 

a $2,866 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.  

 

The school district paid $2,367,687 for employer contributions to the plans for the year ended June 
30, 2021 (2020: $2,113,129) 

 
The next valuation for the Teachers’ Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2020, with results 
available in 2021. The next valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2021, 
with results available in 2022.  
 
Employers participating in the plans record their pension expense as the amount of employer 
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is 
because the plans record accrued liabilities and accrued assets for each plan in aggregate, resulting in 
no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual employers 
participating in the plans. 
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NOTE 13 INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
 
Interfund transfers between the operating, special purpose and capital funds for the year ended June 
30, 2020, were as follows: 
 

 $1,044,000 from the Operating Fund to the Local Capital Fund 
 
 
 
NOTE 14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The School District is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia 
ministries, agencies, school districts, health authorities, colleges, universities, and crown 
corporations.  Transactions with these entities, unless disclosed separately, are considered to be in 
the normal course of operations and are recorded at the exchange amount. 
 
 
 
NOTE 15 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE  

The operations of the School District are dependent on continued funding from the Ministry of 
Education and various governmental agencies to carry out its programs.  These financial statements 
have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
 
 
NOTE 16 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 
 

The School District presently is unable to estimate future obligations related to the removal and 
disposal of asbestos which is believed to be prevalent throughout School District owned buildings 
built prior to the mid 1980s. At present such estimates can only be provided for buildings that are in 
the process of being decommissioned. Over the period to the required implementation in 2022 of a 
new PSAS standard PS3280 Asset Retirement Obligations the School District will be working 
towards establishing reliable estimates in respect of asbestos removal and disposal throughout all 
relevant School District buildings. 
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NOTE 17 BUDGET FIGURES 
 
Budget figures included in the financial statements were approved by the Board through the 
adoption of an amended annual budget on February 10, 2021.  The Board adopted a preliminary 
annual budget on June 10, 2020.  The amended budget is used for comparison purposes, as these are 
based on actual student enrollments.  The difference between the two budgets is as follows: 
 
 

      

   2021 2021  

      Amended Preliminary Difference 

Revenues     

 Provincial Grants    

  Ministry of Education 37,237,168 31,502,943 5,734,225 

  Other               88,400   
                      

50,000                38,400   

      

 Tuition 420,000             540,000  
           

(120,000) 

 Other Revenue 2,557,947 2,357,142 200,805 

 Rentals and Leases 97,900              122,900  (25,000) 

 Investment Income              30,000  28,000 2,000 

 Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue          1,585,275  
        

1,585,275                      -  

 Total Revenue       42,016,690       36,186,260  
               

5,830,430  

Expenses     

 Instruction       33,917,023  29,354,329 4,562,694 

 District Administration 1,540,590  1,327,863 212,727 

 Operations and Maintenance 5,822,640  5,333,384 489,256 

 Transportation and Housing 
        

1,125,578  1,063,519 62,059 

                                              

 Total Expenses       42,405,831  37,079,095 5,326,736  

Surplus (Deficit) for the year        (389,141) (892,835) (503,694) 

Effects of change in Tangible Capital Assets    

 Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets       -  -        -        

 Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets        1,854,799  1,854,799 - 

 Total Effect of change in Tangible     

 Capital Assets       1,354,799  1,854,799 (500,000) 

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets    

(Debt)       965,658 961,964       3,694 
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NOTE 18 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS  

 

Internally Restricted (appropriated) by Board for:  2021 2020 
School & Program Based Resources : 
Technology Initiatives – IBM Review 
MOE Holdback Funds – COVID Learning Loss 
COVID – Day Cleaning 
Dual Credit Course Fees                                                             
Student Achievement Initiatives 
Committee Initiatives (e.g. SOGI etc) 
Policy Review & Update Project 
Elementary VP & District Indigenous Principal 
Teacher Mentorship 
Student Furniture 
School Resources Carried Forward 
Contingency Fund                                        

    
$      62,500 

104,642 
300,690 

- 
205,788 
30,000 
50,000 
89,042 
45,671 
75,000 

198,831 
275,000 

   
   $161,393 

- 
- 

195,000 
     299,138 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

122,117 
275,000 

       
Subtotal Internally Restricted Operating Surplus     1,437,164    1,052,648 

    
Unrestricted Operating Surplus  

 
 

Local Capital: 
Replacement Fund for Artificial Playfield  
Ongoing Investment into Outdoor Learning Centre 
Equipment & Playground Replacement Fund  
Two Portables for Brooks Secondary 
Outdoor Furniture 
 
 
Investment In Capital Assets 
 

 1,272,874 
     2,710,038         

 
 

384,500 
75,000 

125,483 
427,300 
46,450 

1,058,733 
 

9,595,574 

   970,515 
2,023,163 

 
 

375,000 
169,205 
75,000 

- 
- 

619,205 
 

9,260,858 

Total Available for Future Operations  $13,364,345 $11,903,226 
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NOTE 19 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
All significant financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments of the School District are 
either recognized or disclosed in the financial statements together with other information relevant 
for making a reasonable assessment of future cash flows, interest rate risk and credit risk. 
 

 Credit Risk 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the School District to concentrations of 
credit risk consist primarily of other receivables.  The maximum credit risk exposure 
is $328,651 (2020 - $137,426).   

 
The School District manages its credit risk by performing regular credit assessments 
of its customers and provides allowances for potentially uncollectible accounts 
receivable. 

 
 Liquidity Risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the School District will encounter difficulty in meeting 
obligations associated with financial liabilities. 
   
The School District manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and 
forecasted cash flows from operations and anticipated investing activities to ensure, 
as far as possible to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, 
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the School District’s reputation. 

 
 Foreign Currency Risk 

 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.  In seeking to 
manage the risks from foreign exchange rate fluctuations, the School District does 
not hold significant funds in U.S. dollars in order to reduce their risk against adverse 
movements in the foreign exchange rates. 

 
 Financial Asset Impairment 

At each year-end date, the School District is required to evaluate and record any 
other-than-temporary impairment of its financial assets, other than those classified as 
held for trading.  Accordingly, the School District has compared the carrying value of 
each of these financial assets to its fair value as at June 30, 2021.  No provision for 
impairment was recorded in the current year, as the fair value of all financial assets 
tested exceeded their carrying value. 
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NOTE 19 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 

 Fair Values of Financial Instruments 
The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities approximates their fair value due to the short-term maturities of these 
items. 
 

 Risk Management Policy 
The School District, as part of its operations, has established objectives (i.e. hedging 
of risk exposures and avoidance of undue concentrations of risk) to mitigate credit 
risk as risk management objectives.  In seeking to meet these objectives, the School 
District follows a risk management policy approved by its Board of Trustees. 

 
 



Schedule 1 (Unaudited)

2021 2020

Operating Special Purpose Capital Actual Actual

Fund Fund Fund

$ $ $ $ $

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 2,023,163            9,880,063            11,903,226          10,867,553          

Changes for the year

Surplus (Deficit) for the year 1,730,875            (269,756)              1,461,119            1,035,673            

Interfund Transfers

Local Capital (1,044,000)           1,044,000            -                           

Net Changes for the year 686,875               -                           774,244               1,461,119            1,035,673            

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), end of year - Statement 2 2,710,038            -                           10,654,307          13,364,345          11,903,226          

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Version: 6239-5493-3510
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Schedule 2 (Unaudited)

2021 2021 2020

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 31,741,800       32,920,874       27,483,822       

Other 88,400              128,300            101,100            

Tuition 420,000            516,651            1,062,276         

Other Revenue 1,255,447         1,179,307         1,284,272         

Rentals and Leases 97,900              126,654            217,446            

Investment Income 27,500              28,459              48,239              

Total Revenue 33,631,047       34,900,245       30,197,155       

Expenses

Instruction 27,919,763       26,897,024       23,491,015       

District Administration 1,440,083         1,333,489         1,134,948         

Operations and Maintenance 3,461,424         4,009,525         3,249,837         

Transportation and Housing 931,894            929,332            960,988            

Total Expense 33,753,164       33,169,370       28,836,788       

Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (122,117)          1,730,875         1,360,367         

Budgeted Appropriation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 622,117            

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (500,000)          

Local Capital (1,044,000)       (250,000)          

Total Net Transfers (500,000)          (1,044,000)       (250,000)          

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                        686,875            1,110,367         

Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 2,023,163         912,796            

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 2,710,038         2,023,163         

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year

Internally Restricted (Note 18) 1,437,164         1,052,648         

Unrestricted 1,272,874         970,515            

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 2,710,038         2,023,163         

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Operating Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Version: 6239-5493-3510
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Schedule 2A (Unaudited)

2021 2021 2020

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17)

$ $ $

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education 31,729,935       32,761,556       27,562,477       

ISC/LEA Recovery (1,020,247)       (877,909)          (1,018,738)       

Other Ministry of Education Grants

Pay Equity 243,303            243,304            243,304            

Funding for Graduated Adults 10,000              4,223                11,936              

Student Transportation Fund 91,754              91,754              91,754              

Carbon Tax Grant 30,978              

Employer Health Tax Grant 185,528            

Support Staff Wage Increase Funding 99,565              

Teachers' Labour Settlement Funding 629,555            629,555            259,938            

Early Career Mentorship Funding 50,000              50,000              

FSA Scorer Grant 7,500                7,506                7,506                

District Capacity Building - Early Learning 6,000                9,574                

Equity Scan Implementation 3,000                

Early Learning Framework Implementation 1,885                

Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 31,741,800       32,920,874       27,483,822       

Provincial Grants - Other 88,400              128,300            101,100            

Tuition

Summer School Fees 15,784              

International and Out of Province Students 420,000            516,651            1,046,492         

Total Tuition 420,000            516,651            1,062,276         

Other Revenues

Other School District/Education Authorities 151,200            151,200            164,296            

Funding from First Nations 1,020,247         877,909            1,018,738         

Miscellaneous

Misc. Billings & Recoveries 50,000              28,225              69,570              

Purchase Card Rebate 14,000              16,433              14,287              

North Van. Island Aboriginal Training Society 20,000              20,688              

Art Starts Grant 14,590              6,400                

Cosmotology Revenues 1,889                10,981              

Cafeteria Revenues 68,373              

Total Other Revenue 1,255,447         1,179,307         1,284,272         

Rentals and Leases 97,900              126,654            217,446            

Investment Income 27,500              28,459              48,239              

Total Operating Revenue 33,631,047       34,900,245       30,197,155       

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Version: 6239-5493-3510
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Schedule 2B (Unaudited)

2021 2021 2020

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17)

$ $ $

Salaries

Teachers 11,620,268       11,523,292       10,235,792       

Principals and Vice Principals 1,733,022         1,697,346         1,711,122         

Educational Assistants 2,059,768         1,900,703         2,079,263         

Support Staff 2,502,154         2,484,387         2,206,047         

Other Professionals 1,649,463         1,665,643         1,224,681         

Substitutes 1,178,450         983,921            851,842            

Total Salaries 20,743,125       20,255,292       18,308,747       

Employee Benefits 4,693,745         4,597,570         4,239,053         

Total Salaries and Benefits 25,436,870       24,852,862       22,547,800       

Services and Supplies

Services 3,581,608         3,728,167         2,008,414         

Student Transportation 13,200              7,181                6,391                

Professional Development and Travel 268,349            185,522            298,562            

Rentals and Leases 295,199            296,850            225,397            

Dues and Fees 200,250            213,555            371,245            

Insurance 82,500              81,498              74,139              

Supplies 3,266,988         3,167,020         2,748,164         

Utilities 608,200            636,715            556,676            

Total Services and Supplies 8,316,294         8,316,508         6,288,988         

Total Operating Expense 33,753,164       33,169,370       28,836,788       

School District No. 47 (Powell River)

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Schedule of Operating Expense by Object

Version: 6239-5493-3510
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Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Principals and Educational Support Other

Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total

Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 9,160,730          309,433             217,015             348,762             748,283             10,784,223        

1.03 Career Programs 95,681               50,000               145,681             

1.07 Library Services 121,377             2,020                 16,463               139,860             

1.08 Counselling 317,823             11,368               24,714               353,905             

1.10 Special Education 1,333,422          22,383               1,900,703          12,561               373,833             101,028             3,743,930          

1.30 English Language Learning 40,000               40,000               

1.31 Indigenous Education 325,066             8,442                 333,508             

1.41 School Administration 1,280,900          532,484             16,976               1,830,360          

1.60 Summer School -                         

1.61 Continuing Education 81,352               54,633               135,985             

1.62 International and Out of Province Students 47,841               21,242               18,217               2,510                 89,810               

Total Function 1 11,523,292        1,697,346          1,900,703          803,237             795,445             877,239             17,597,262        

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration 467,886             467,886             

4.40 School District Governance 80,741               80,741               

4.41 Business Administration 109,059             222,828             331,887             

Total Function 4 -                         -                         -                         109,059             771,455             -                         880,514             

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 17,328               57,764               75,092               

5.50 Maintenance Operations 994,638             7,900                 85,717               1,088,255          

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 82,388               82,388               

5.56 Utilities -                         

Total Function 5 -                         -                         -                         1,094,354          65,664               85,717               1,245,735          

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 18,625               33,079               51,704               

7.70 Student Transportation 459,112             20,965               480,077             

Total Function 7 -                         -                         -                         477,737             33,079               20,965               531,781             

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9 -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total Functions 1 - 9 11,523,292        1,697,346          1,900,703          2,484,387          1,665,643          983,921             20,255,292        

Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction

1.03 Career Programs

1.07 Library Services

1.08 Counselling

1.10 Special Education

1.30 English Language Learning

1.31 Indigenous Education

1.41 School Administration

1.60 Summer School

1.61 Continuing Education

1.62 International and Out of Province Students

Total Function 1

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration

4.40 School District Governance

4.41 Business Administration

Total Function 4

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration

5.50 Maintenance Operations

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds

5.56 Utilities

Total Function 5

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration

7.70 Student Transportation

Total Function 7

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9

Total Functions 1 - 9

Year Ended June 30, 2021
2021 2021 2020

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and Actual Budget Actual

Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies (Note 17)

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

10,784,223        2,525,443          13,309,666        3,075,783          16,385,449        16,407,419        14,587,103        

145,681             30,943               176,624             1,067                 177,691             184,126             169,696             

139,860             32,116               171,976             16,352               188,328             204,473             234,217             

353,905             73,430               427,335             6,330                 433,665             278,129             301,311             

3,743,930          883,736             4,627,666          1,525,803          6,153,469          6,931,591          4,631,688          

40,000               8,000                 48,000               9,473                 57,473               52,438               17,436               

333,508             74,890               408,398             27,199               435,597             448,481             373,634             

1,830,360          367,023             2,197,383          95,091               2,292,474          2,449,275          1,950,890          

-                         -                         -                         186,924             

135,985             33,552               169,537             237,398             406,935             557,891             451,893             

89,810               18,393               108,203             257,740             365,943             405,940             586,223             

17,597,262        4,047,526          21,644,788        5,252,236          26,897,024        27,919,763        23,491,015        

467,886             101,366             569,252             53,143               622,395             694,544             515,204             

80,741               4,505                 85,246               44,258               129,504             138,000             120,067             

331,887             74,699               406,586             175,004             581,590             607,539             499,677             

880,514             180,570             1,061,084          272,405             1,333,489          1,440,083          1,134,948          

75,092               15,024               90,116               64,972               155,088             183,605             171,488             

1,088,255          229,412             1,317,667          1,688,122          3,005,789          2,503,349          2,363,500          

82,388               17,435               99,823               106,014             205,837             166,270             158,173             

-                         -                         642,811             642,811             608,200             556,676             

1,245,735          261,871             1,507,606          2,501,919          4,009,525          3,461,424          3,249,837          

51,704               10,676               62,380               2,384                 64,764               66,961               63,751               

480,077             96,927               577,004             287,564             864,568             864,933             897,237             

531,781             107,603             639,384             289,948             929,332             931,894             960,988             

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

20,255,292        4,597,570          24,852,862        8,316,508          33,169,370        33,753,164        28,836,788        
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Schedule 3 (Unaudited)

2021 2021 2020

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 5,495,368         5,436,316         4,323,856         

Other Revenue 1,302,500         786,655            1,309,150         

Total Revenue 6,797,868         6,222,971         5,633,006         

Expenses

Instruction 5,997,260         5,464,240         5,322,522         

District Administration 100,507            96,347              92,554              

Operations and Maintenance 644,941            607,224            217,930            

Transportation and Housing 55,160              55,160              

Total Expense 6,797,868         6,222,971         5,633,006         

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        -                       -                        

Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        -                       -                        

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year -                       -                        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom

Facility Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Enhancement

Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Fund - Overhead

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year 13,420                487,542              1,267                69,605                  

Transfer 191,346              (191,346)             

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year, as restated -                         -                         204,766              296,196              -                         -                         1,267                69,605                  -                         

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 122,930              100,916              128,000              14,700                56,361              205,122                120,435              

Other 72,926                650,376              

122,930              100,916              72,926                650,376              128,000              14,700                56,361              205,122                120,435              

Less: Allocated to Revenue 122,930              100,916              70,288                716,367              101,273              10,345                52,690              181,527                120,435              

Deferred Revenue, end of year -                         -                         207,404              230,205              26,727                4,355                  4,938                93,200                  -                         

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 122,930              100,916              101,273              10,345                52,690              181,527                120,435              

Other Revenue 70,288                716,367              

122,930              100,916              70,288                716,367              101,273              10,345                52,690              181,527                120,435              

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 22,517              42,500                  

Educational Assistants 80,733                33,175                  

Support Staff 34,887                73,477                1,016                  45,480                

Other Professionals 61,933                  

Substitutes 62,560                

34,887                80,733                -                         -                         73,477                1,016                  22,517              137,608                108,040              

Employee Benefits 4,231                  20,183                21,734                4,503                31,479                  3,510                  

Services and Supplies 83,812                70,288                716,367              6,062                  9,329                  25,670              12,440                  8,885                  

122,930              100,916              70,288                716,367              101,273              10,345                52,690              181,527                120,435              

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                       -                           -                         

Interfund Transfers

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                       -                           -                         

Net Revenue (Expense) -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                       -                           -                         

Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Transfer

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year, as restated

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Other

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Other Revenue

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Classroom Classroom Mental Safe Return Federal Safe Auditory

Enhancement Enhancement Health to Return to Outreach New Life 

Fund - Staffing Fund - Remedies in Schools School Grant Class Fund Program Society TOTAL

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

1,362                  573,196              

-                         

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         1,362                  573,196              

1,763,914           319,914              55,000                180,570              1,011,119           1,415,683           5,494,664           

723,302              

1,763,914           319,914              55,000                180,570              1,011,119           1,415,683           -                         6,217,966           

1,763,914           319,914              55,000                180,570              1,011,119           1,415,683           -                         6,222,971           

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         1,362                  568,191              

1,763,914           319,914              55,000                180,570              1,011,119           1,415,683           5,436,316           

786,655              

1,763,914           319,914              55,000                180,570              1,011,119           1,415,683           -                         6,222,971           

1,434,078           281,228              430,142              18,761                2,229,226           

4,410                  45,000                163,318              

75,944                172,935              86,916                490,655              

239,990              301,923              

7,200                  45,000                114,760              

1,434,078           285,638              7,200                  75,944                693,077              345,667              -                         3,299,882           

329,836              34,276                15,189                127,821              76,501                669,263              

47,800                89,437                190,221              993,515              2,253,826           

1,763,914           319,914              55,000                180,570              1,011,119           1,415,683           -                         6,222,971           

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Schedule 4 (Unaudited)

2021 2020

Budget Invested in Tangible Local Fund Actual

(Note 17) Capital Assets Capital Balance

$ $ $ $ $

Revenues

Investment Income 2,500            3,000            3,000            4,000               

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,585,275     1,615,684                 1,615,684     1,599,999        

Total Revenue 1,587,775     1,615,684                 3,000            1,618,684     1,603,999        

Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 1,716,275     1,749,528                 1,749,528     1,779,076        

Transportation and Housing 138,524        138,912                    138,912        149,617           

Total Expense 1,854,799     1,888,440                 -                   1,888,440     1,928,693        

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (267,024)      (272,756)                   3,000            (269,756)      (324,694)          

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 500,000        -                   

Local Capital 1,044,000     1,044,000     250,000           

Total Net Transfers 500,000        -                                1,044,000     1,044,000     250,000           

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital 607,472                    (607,472)      -                   

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 607,472                    (607,472)      -                   

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year 232,976        334,716                    439,528        774,244        (74,694)            

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 9,260,858                 619,205        9,880,063     9,954,757        

Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of year 9,595,574                 1,058,733     10,654,307   9,880,063        

2021 Actual
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Schedule 4A (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer

Sites Buildings Equipment Vehicles Software Hardware Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost, beginning of year 4,038,922          68,269,579        1,334,285          1,389,116          81,651               189,056             75,302,609        

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Purchases from:

Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 1,222,348          125,000             177,903             1,525,251          

Local Capital 112,315             387,685             95,054               12,418               607,472             

112,315             1,610,033          220,054             190,321             -                         -                         2,132,723          

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 40,910               51,060               91,970               

-                         -                         40,910               -                         -                         51,060               91,970               

Cost, end of year 4,151,237          69,879,612        1,513,429          1,579,437          81,651               137,996             77,343,362        

Work in Progress, end of year -                         

Cost and Work in Progress, end of year 4,151,237          69,879,612        1,513,429          1,579,437          81,651               137,996             77,343,362        

Accumulated Amortization, beginning of year 27,018,937        564,471             812,394             42,988               98,690               28,537,480        

Changes for the Year

Increase:  Amortization for the Year 1,561,958          133,429             138,912             16,330               37,811               1,888,440          

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 40,910               51,060               91,970               

-                         40,910               -                         -                         51,060               91,970               

Accumulated Amortization, end of year 28,580,895        656,990             951,306             59,318               85,441               30,333,950        

Tangible Capital Assets - Net 4,151,237          41,298,717        856,439             628,131             22,333               52,555               47,009,412        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Tangible Capital Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Schedule 4C (Unaudited)

Bylaw Other Other Total

Capital Provincial Capital Capital

$ $ $ $

Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year 34,307,206       2,401,745         795,320            37,504,271       

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Capital Additions 1,525,251         1,525,251         

1,525,251         -                        -                        1,525,251         

Decrease:

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,501,259         88,506              25,919              1,615,684         

1,501,259         88,506              25,919              1,615,684         

Net Changes for the Year 23,992              (88,506)            (25,919)            (90,433)            

Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 34,331,198       2,313,239         769,401            37,413,838       

Work in Progress, beginning of year -                       

Changes for the Year

Net Changes for the Year -                        -                        -                        -                       

Work in Progress, end of year -                        -                        -                        -                       

Total Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 34,331,198       2,313,239         769,401            37,413,838       

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Schedule 4D (Unaudited)

MEd Other

Bylaw Restricted Provincial Land Other

Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance, beginning of year -                       

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 1,525,251         1,525,251         

1,525,251         -                        -                        -                        -                        1,525,251         

Decrease:

Transferred to DCR - Capital Additions 1,525,251         1,525,251         

1,525,251         -                        -                        -                        -                        1,525,251         

Net Changes for the Year -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                       

Balance, end of year -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2021
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School District No. 47 (Powell River)  
  
2022-2023 Capital Plan Overview 
 

 
 
Overview 
The following projects are recommended for consideration under a number of government capital 
planning funding envelopes with an emphasis placed on system renewal and energy conservation. 
 
Expansion Program 
Edgehill Elementary is one of four older elementary school buildings in the District. It’s current nominal 

student capacity is 20 kindergarten and 125 elementary aged students. Enrolment is currently at 212 

students. Students are currently housed in the school building along with five older portable classrooms. 

 

A project fact sheet has been developed and used create a business case to support the request for an 

addition to the building which, if supported, would potentially increase the school capacity to 40 

kindergarten and 225 elementary aged students.  

  

Seismic Mitigation Program (SMP) 

Seismic Improvements (million) 

Texada - $2.4  

Oceanview - $1.7 

James Thomson (Heritage) - $1.6 

 

School Enhancement Program (SEP) 

Roofing Replacement – James Thomson Elementary  

Estimate - $550,000 

Roofing Replacement – Henderson Elementary Gymnasium 

Estimate - $115,000 

 

Carbon Neutral Capital Program (CNCP) 
LED Lighting Upgrade – Multiple Elementary Sites 

Estimate - $250,000 

Electrical Service Upgrade – Henderson Elementary 

Estimate - $120,000 

 
Bus Acquisition Program (BUS) 
Business case for early replacement of a unit under review 



                                                 S . D . # 4 7 ( P O W E L L   R I V E R )

 (REPORT NO. 11)                                                  REPORT TO TRUSTEES

  17-Sep-21     03:51 PM                                 FOR PERIOD ENDING: AUGUST 31, 2021                               PAGE  1

 ACCOUNT # / DESCRIPTION               EXPENDITURES       COMMITMENTS          TOTAL           BUDGET          BALANCE      AVAIL %

 =======================               ============       ============         =====           ======          =======      =======

 1 INSTRUCTION                                                                                                        

 1-100

 SALARIES                           YTD  596,842.96             0.00       596,842.96    20,092,680.00    19,495,837.04     97.03

 1-200

 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND ALLOWANCES   YTD  117,719.02             0.00       117,719.02     4,491,725.00     4,374,005.98     97.38

 1-300

 SERVICES PURCHASED                 YTD  332,568.82             0.00       332,568.82     3,284,457.00     2,951,888.18     89.87

 1-500

 SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS             YTD   55,841.46             0.00        55,841.46     2,507,991.00     2,452,149.54     97.77

 1

 TOTAL  --  INSTRUCTION               1,102,972.26             0.00     1,102,972.26    30,376,853.00    29,273,880.74     96.37

 4 DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION                                                                                            

 4-100

 SALARIES                           YTD  172,653.06             0.00       172,653.06       960,135.00       787,481.94     82.02

 4-200

 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND ALLOWANCES   YTD   30,234.92             0.00        30,234.92       200,986.00       170,751.08     84.96

 4-300

 SERVICES PURCHASED                 YTD   40,034.71             0.00        40,034.71       285,328.00       245,293.29     85.97

 4-500

 SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS             YTD      920.83             0.00           920.83        26,500.00        25,579.17     96.53

 4

 TOTAL  --  DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION     243,843.52             0.00       243,843.52     1,472,949.00     1,229,105.48     83.45

 5 OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE                                                                                         

 5-100

 SALARIES                           YTD  189,965.22             0.00       189,965.22     1,634,229.00     1,444,263.78     88.38

 5-200

 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND ALLOWANCES   YTD   35,326.52             0.00        35,326.52       356,516.00       321,189.48     90.09

 5-300

 SERVICES PURCHASED                 YTD   57,639.29         7,800.00        65,439.29       590,700.00       525,260.71     88.92

 5-500

 SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS             YTD  100,958.18             0.00       100,958.18     1,098,500.00       997,541.82     90.81

 5

 TOTAL  --  OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE    383,889.21       7,800.00       391,689.21     3,679,945.00     3,288,255.79     89.36

 7 TRANSPORTATION & HOUSING                                                                                           

 7-100

 SALARIES                           YTD   29,052.79             0.00        29,052.79       536,504.00       507,451.21     94.58

 7-200

 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND ALLOWANCES   YTD    6,573.62             0.00         6,573.62       114,996.00       108,422.38     94.28

 7-300

 SERVICES PURCHASED                 YTD   27,289.63             0.00        27,289.63        53,500.00        26,210.37     48.99

 7-500

 SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS             YTD    3,529.85             0.00         3,529.85       205,000.00       201,470.15     98.28

 7

 TOTAL  --  TRANSPORTATION & HOUSING     66,445.89             0.00        66,445.89       910,000.00       843,554.11     92.70

 

 GRAND TOTAL                          1,797,150.88         7,800.00     1,804,950.88    36,439,747.00    34,634,796.12     95.05
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SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47 (POWELL RIVER) 
BOARD OF EDUCATION  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
12:00 PM., Wednesday, September 8, 2021  

SCHOOL BOARD OFFICE 
 
 

                             MEETING NOTES 
 
 
 
 
Present: Dale Lawson, Doug Skinner, Jaclyn Miller, Rob Hill, Brendan Behan  
 
Also in attendance: Jay Yule (Superintendent), Steve Hopkins (Secretary-Treasurer) 
    
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Moved:  B. Behan 
Seconded:  R. Hill 
 
THAT the agenda be adopted as presented. 
 

 
Status:   Carried 

 
 

2. STANDING COMMITTEES 
2.a) Education Committee 
 i) Mental Health & Well-Being 

J. Yule spoke to staff plans to solicit feedback from stakeholders, schools, 
committees etc., reporting that senior administration would develop 
recommendations for the Board to consider in October that address the 
required criteria as outlined in the correspondence.  
 
J. Yule also spoke to the availability of published resource information and 
reports on student mental health; some of which were included as links in the 
agenda package. 
 
B. Behan and D. Skinner each spoke to examples of community need. 
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 ii) Learning Impacts Resulting from the Pandemic 
S. Hopkins and K. Brach spoke to available money carried over from the prior 
year intended to fund strategies that address ‘learning loss’ because of the 
pandemic.  Senior staff will bring forward recommendations for Board 
consideration in October. 
 
 

   iii) Equity Grant 
J. Yule spoke to the availability of additional financial resources in support of 
work associated with the ‘Equity’ Scan. 

 
    This work will involve the Indigenous Education Team and stakeholders. 
 

J. Yule spoke briefly to changes to the utilization of Indigenous resource 
teachers at Elementary schools. 

    
 

   iv) Equity in Action – 2020/2021 
J. Yule spoke briefly to the Equity in Action yearend report provided by Jessica 
Johnson, Indigenous Education Coordinator.  The report was submitted to the 
Ministry of Education as required. 
 
J. Yule also updated Trustees as to the status of prospective interviews for the 
District Principal of Indigenous Education; a newly created position for the 
2021/2022 school year. 
 
 

   v) Before & After School Care – Concept Plan 
K. Brach updated Trustees as to the status of the proposed Concept Plan for a 
prospective after school program including the development of a parent 
survey to be distributed through school Principals and posted online. 
 
K. Brach spoke briefly to the makeup of the parent survey. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the inclusion of a hardship clause for those who 
may not be able to afford to have their children participate. Administration to 
review the survey to ensure that it adequately captures the Boards intent 
prior to its distribution. 
 

 
2.b) Operations Committee    

   i) Draft Financial Statements – 2020/2021 
S. Hopkins spoke to the draft financial statement materials in detail. 

 
The complete statements including auditors reports and notes will be brought 
forward for the Board to adopt at the September 22nd meeting. 

 
   ii) Communicable Disease Guidelines 

S. Hopkins spoke to the local guidelines in place for School District 47 
reporting that they were developed based on materials and guidance from 
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the Province. A short discussion ensued regarding the specifics of the mask 
mandate in relation to students and staff.  
 
 

  2.c) Policy Committee 
    i) Policy & Procedure Upgrade Proposal 

s. Hopkins spoke to the proposal to engage a consultant to assist in 
modernizing the Board’s Policies and Administrative Procedures. The proposal 
was reviewed by Trustees and will be brought forward to the regular meeting 
on September 22nd to be formally addressed by way of a resolution. 

 
   ii) Policy 2 Amendments, re:   Recording and Meeting Schedule 

S. Hopkins spoke to draft amendments intended to capture the meeting 
schedule for the year, and as well, the Board direction to explore the 
recording of meetings. The draft policy amendments will be brought forward 
for first reading at the regular meeting of September 22nd.  

 
   iii) Prospective Anti-Poverty Policy – Discussion (R. Hill) 

R. Hill spoke to his interest in seeing the Board adopt a policy statement 
regarding anti-poverty, such as what was done in District 46. 
 
Staff to bring forward relevant, related examples from other School Districts, 
including the Sunshine Coast, for the Board to review and consider.   

 
   iv) Criminal Record Checks for Trustees – Discussion (D. Lawson) 
    D. Lawson spoke to the potential creation of a local requirement to have 

Trustees undertake criminal record checks during their term of office. Existing 
policy regarding a similar requirement for parent volunteers was also 
discussed as was the cycle in place for existing staff.  

 
 

3. OTHER COMMITTEES 
3.a)   Social Action & Planning Advisory Committee 

J. Yule spoke briefly to his attendance at the SAPAC Meeting. 
 
J. Yule to notify committee organizers of R. Hill’s Board appointment replacing the 
previous appointment of D. Skinner. 

 
 
3.b)   Poverty Reduction Advisory Committee 
 J. Miller spoke to her attendance at the prior meeting. 
 
 JMC 

J. Yule spoke to existing bylaw constraints with respect to having two Trustees 
participate on the committee as the bylaws state that there will only be four 
members from each group of the two groups. It was acknowledged that the District 
currently has five with the additional Trustee appointment. It was agreed that R. Hill 
would act as the lone Trustee representative reducing the number back to four 
District appointees. 
 



 

 

Committee of the Whole Meeting, September 8, 2021 
 

 
3.c)  SD47 SOGI Committee 

i) Prospective Crosswalk  
S. Hopkins spoke briefly to a request from the City of Powell River asking for the 
Boards thoughts on the installation of a rainbow crosswalk at the intersection of 
Selkirk and Nootka in front of Westview Elementary School. 

 
Allison Burt spoke to her perspective, and that of others on behalf of the SOGI 
Committee as the short timeline didn’t allow for the whole committee to meet 
and discuss the proposal. Included in the agenda was a summary of those 
recommendations.  

 
 Trustees discussed the City of Powell River request and the feedback provided 
by A. Burt on behalf of the District Committee.  
 
After some discussion, Trustees requested that the Superintendent connect with 
R. Brewer, Administrator for the City, to gather additional information and then 
to convey that the Board is supportive of a rainbow crosswalk as an initiative but 
believe the intersection of Joyce and Nootka, or another more visible location in 
Westview would better achieve the perceived objectives. Consideration for a 
more formal communication would be given once the Superintendent 
connected with Mr. Brewer.  
 
Discussion of the rainbow crosswalk initiative also gave rise to an additional 
discussion regarding pedestrian safety in and around Westview Elementary 
School.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: THAT the Board of Education of School District 47 (Powell River) 

provide the City of Powell River with a letter outlining a series of traffic related concerns 
regarding student safety surrounding Westview Elementary School.” 

 
 ii) SOGI Initiatives 2021/2022 

Allison Burt spoke to a series of committee recommendations as well as plans 
for the current school year in related to the work of the District SOGI 
committee. A written summary of these recommendations and plans was 
included in the agenda package. 

 
 

A. OTHER INFORMATION 
 
4.a) Board Work Plan 

S. Hopkins spoke briefly to the draft Work Plan which will be brought forward to the 
regular meeting in September and then posted on the district website. 
 
Items in Red are identified as days or events that will be observed by the district in 
addition to what might also be observed at a school level. 
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4.b) Days of Observance 
Trustees reviewed the proposed list, identified days that schools would be required 
to observe leaving the remaining days as ones that may be observed. Also added to 
the list was volunteer week which is to be observed in April.  
 
 

  4.c) Covid Immunizations 
The Superintendent spoke to a written request from Vancouver Coastal Health, to 
host an immunization clinic for eligible students in late September. Trustees asked 
that the Superintendent request that the information going to parents from the 
district on behalf of Vancouver Coastal Health include information pertaining to 
parental consent.  
 
  

ADJOURNMENT  
 

Moved: R. Hill 
 

THAT the Closed Board Meeting be adjourned at 2:30 p.m. 
 

Status:   Carried  
        

 
 
SH/ac 
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The RCA Governance Model 
 
 
 

 
 
 
THE MODEL 
 
Boards create policies and policy manuals in order to ensure that their collective will 
is carried out. The Board policy processes used by any Board are perfectly designed 
to get the results the Board is now getting. If the collective will of the Board is not 
being carried out or if there is a lack of clarity, the Board should consider changing 
its policy processes.  
The governance model described in this document has been designed to ensure the 
Board’s corporate or collective will becomes reality. The key features of the model 
are: 
 

1.   Role Clarity: The Board’s Governance role and the Superintendent’s 
administrative role are completely discrete and entirely complementary. 

 
2.   Accountability: Delegation with accountability is powerful. Delegation without 

accountability is abdication.  
 
 
 

THE FALLACY OF GETTING GOOD AT A BAD GAME 
 
If a Board’s policy manual is badly outdated the Board may be tempted to simply 
update the policy handbook and thus perpetuate many of the weaknesses inherent 
in old style “door-stopper sized” manuals. Boards should not try to get good at a bad 
game but rather adopt a new policy process. Old style policy manuals typically mix 
and even link Board policy and Administrative procedures leaving it unclear as to who 
has authority for what. Over time conflict is the result. In addition, old style policy 
manuals tend to grow in size with little assurance that behavior ever changes. 
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GOVERNANCE: THE ROLE OF THE BOARD 
 
The role of the Board is defined in legislation. However, the role is addressed in 
several different sections. In addition, the BC School Act Section 65(2c) allows the 
Board to delegate a large number of its legislated responsibilities should it decide to 
do so. The decision as to which roles the Board retains or delegates rests with the 
Board.  Too frequently a Board’s policy manual does not define the Board’s job 
description. Without doing so the Board cannot effectively define the role of the 
Superintendent.  The Roles Clarification and Accountability (RCA) Governance Model 
ensures the Board’s governance role and the discrete yet complementary 
administrative role of the Superintendent are clearly articulated. 
 
In addition, the model gives the Board means for ensuring the Superintendent is held 
accountable for appropriately carrying out delegated responsibilities.  

 
CORE POLICIES 
 
The following are core policies in the RCA model: 
 
1.   Foundational statements   
2.   Role of the Board 
3.   Role of Trustee 
4.   Trustee Code of  
       Conduct and Sanctions 

5.   Role of Board Chair  
6.   Role of Vice Chair 
7.   Board Operations 
8.   Committees of the Board 
9.   Board Representatives 
10. Policy Development 

11. Board Delegation of  
       Authority 
12. Role of Superintendent 
13. Appeals Procedure By-law 
14. School Closures 
15. Recruitment and  

      Selection of Personnel  
    16. Indemnification By-law 

17. Restricted and Non-Restricted 
Surplus Funds

 
ADDITIONAL POLICIES & SUBSEQUENTLY CHANGING POLICIES 
 
In addition to the above core policies a board implementing the RCA model will choose areas 
over which it wishes to retain decision-making authority. After the initial creation of the policy 
handbook, if the Board wishes to have decision-making authority in a particular area it may 
do so in one of three ways: 
 
1.  The Board might add a policy to the policy handbook prescribing how this matter is to be 

addressed.  
 
2.  The Board may alternatively amend the “Role of the Board” policy by adding a statement 

which stipulates direction relative to this matter.  
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3.  The Board may amend the policy regarding the “Role of the Superintendent” policy to 

prescribe what the Superintendent must do relative to this matter. 

 
THE POLICY HANDBOOK 
 
Most policy manuals contain a collection of documents which are not, in fact, policies. For 
example, many contain a number of administrative procedures and forms. By creating two 
documents - a policy handbook and an administrative procedures manual - clarity is 
provided as to the distinction between policy (the Board’s work) and administrative 
procedures (the Superintendent’s work). The documents in the board policy handbook are 
“owned” by the Board and deal with matters the board approves, amends or deletes. 
Documents in the administrative procedures manual are “owned” by the Superintendent 
and deal with matters over which the Superintendent has been given authority. 

 
THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES MANUAL 
 
In the RCA model, the Board delegates to the Superintendent those matters which they do 
not have the expertise or time to complete. In addition, the Board should follow the adage: 
“If you cannot say” No,” refuse to say,” Yes”. This avoids rubber-stamping. This would be the 
case for example if the Board were asked to approve personnel decisions after those 
decisions had been made. A better alternative is to delegate authority to the Superintendent 
relative to such a matter. If authority has been delegated to the Superintendent, the 
Superintendent may choose to write administrative procedures relative to this matter, and 
these would be placed in the administrative procedures manual. This manual’s contents are 
added to, amended or deleted by the Superintendent. When such changes are made the 
Superintendent would so inform the Board in a formal Board agenda as an information item. 
The Board does not approve administrative procedures. Therefore, the Board may hold the 
Superintendent accountable for developing and administering appropriate administrative 
direction to staff as part of the regular Superintendent evaluation process. 

 

KEEPING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES CURRENT 
 

Policy manuals may include outdated statements. The deletion of such statements 
increases the level of trust individuals have in these manuals.  

 

Peter Drucker has stated that every year, every policy and procedure should be put on trial 
for its life, and those who cannot defend themselves should be eliminated. Sounds like 
tough - but necessary - medicine! In any event, processes are required to ensure the 
contents of the manuals described above are kept current. 

  
Two processes are proposed as part of this model. The first process is integrated into the 
Superintendent’s evaluation, while the second is integrated into the yearly Board review. In 
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this second instance, the Board reviews the action items from the past year’s minutes in 
light of the Board’s policies and annual work plan to ensure the Board is performing its role 
as prescribed in their board policy handbook.  
 
This yearly check-up provides an opportunity for the Superintendent and Board to discuss 
expectations and achievements in the context of specific actions taken and results 
achieved.  

 
PROCESS FOR ADOPTING THE RCA GOVERNANCE MODEL 
 

1. The process begins with a day long workshop involving the Board and Superintendent 
and any senior staff agreed to by the Board and Superintendent.  Typically the 
Secretary Treasurer would be included. The following three policies are developed in 
detail: 

 
 The Role of the Board 
 The Role of the Superintendent 
 Delegation of Authority to the Superintendent. 

 
2. The consultant then engages the Board in a process to clearly identify those 

additional areas over which the Board wishes to retain authority and any existing 
policy documents which are to be retained in the new model.  

3. The consultant advises the Board regarding required governance policies and the 
implications of particular decisions. 

4. Following this workshop, the consultant takes the Board’s direction and develops two 
draft documents, The Board Policy Handbook and The Administrative Procedures 
Manual. These two documents honor current practice, policy related documents and 
any direction determined in the initial workshop. A disposition of documents 
document is developed so the Board can see how existing documents have been 
utilized in the new model.  

5. The Board and Superintendent meet with the Consultant for a day long workshop to 
review the Draft Board Policy Handbook to ensure it reflects the direction provided in 
the initial day long workshop.  

6. Two days of meetings with the Consultants, the Superintendent and senior staff are 
then required to review the draft Administrative Procedures Manual.   

7. Final revisions are made and electronic versions of the two documents are made 
available to the Board for final adoption and placement in the district’s web site. Both 
the manual and the handbook are prepared in electronic format to facilitate the 
district’s placement on the district’s web site. This ensures transparency, currency, 
and ease of access.  
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8. The Board, in a public meeting, rescinds existing board policies, bylaws and 
administrative procedures and adopts the new Board Policy Handbook. 

 

 
 

COST IMPLICATIONS AND TIMELINES  
 

The Board shall be billed an upset cost of ($50,000 plus GST and travel). See draft services 
agreement 
 
Timelines are subject to the consultant receiving timely direction and the availability of the 
Board and senior staff relative to the meetings identified above and other required 
involvement in the process. On site district clerical assistance is required for the two days 
when the consultants meet with senior staff to review in detail the draft administrative 
procedures manual. Typically, the time between the Board engaging the consultant until the 
Board receives the documents for approval is three months. It is the consultant’s intent to 
engage resources to meet this timeframe. It is critical, however, that the time required is 
taken to not only get the right final products but also to implement them in accordance with 
a timeline that provides the best chance for successful implementation of the governance 
model. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION PROCEDURES 
 
 
Within the framework of the Board’s policies and procedures, decisions are made that keep the 
District moving forward as it provides the best possible learning opportunities for students.  
 
In order to perform these and other duties, the Board comes together at regularly scheduled 
public and closed meetings.  It also holds other meetings or working sessions as deemed 
necessary. Agendas and minutes from public meetings are available for all to view on the 
District website at www.sd47.bc.ca . 
 
This Policy outlines the processes and procedures used to function and do the work of the 
Board.  
 
 
1. Quorum for District Meetings 
 
A quorum for District meetings shall consist of a simple majority (School Act, Sec 66). For School 
District 47 this means there must be a minimum of three trustees at Board meetings. A trustee 
shall be counted as in attendance for the purpose of making a quorum via video and/or 
teleconference (School Act, Sec 67.7). If fifteen minutes after the appointed time a quorum is 
not present, the meeting shall stand adjourned to a date in the same month to be fixed by the 
Chair, or until the next regular meeting.   In the event there must be a quorum initiated 
adjournment, the Secretary-Treasurer shall record the names of the Trustees present at the 
time of the adjournment. 
 
 
2. Inaugural Meeting and Elections  
 
After the results of the trustee elections are officially announced, an inaugural meeting will be 
held prior to the first regular monthly meeting.  The purpose of the inaugural meeting shall be 
to swear-in the new School Board (School Act Sec.50). The Secretary-Treasurer will give notice 
of the inaugural meeting and preside at it (School Act, Sec 67.1).   
 

http://www.sd47.bc.ca/
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At the first regular meeting following the inauguration, and again annually for the duration of 
the term there will be an election of the Board’s Officers. A Board Chair, Vice-Chair, Provincial 
Councillor to the BCSTA and a BCPSEA Representative will be selected by a show of hands vote 
from the five Trustees (School Act, Sec 67.2).  
 
The Secretary-Treasurer shall preside until the selection of the Board Officers is completed. 
Following the election of the Board Officers the regular Board Meeting will proceed. 
 
 
3. Regular Meetings 
 
3.1     There will normally be three meetings of the Board per month; one public, one closed, 

and one committee of the whole. Special meetings may also be called as required to do 
the business of the Board.  

 
3.2     The Regular Public Meeting is open to everyone. This meeting is normally held on the 

second third Wednesday of the month from September to June. Unless otherwise 
advertised it is held at 4:00 pm in the Board Room of the School District 47 
Administration Building.  

 
3.3     The business of this meeting shall be dealt with according to the prepared agenda in the 

following general order: 
a) Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 
b) Presentations, if applicable 
c) Question Period 
d) Chairperson’s Remarks 
e) Approval of Agenda with any additions or deletions 
f) Adoption of Minutes  
g) Correspondence 
h) Reports from:      

i. Superintendent  
ii. Secretary-Treasurer  

iii. Committees 
i) Other Business Items 
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j) Question Period 
k) Media Question Period 
l) Adjournment 

 
 
3.4     The Board believes recording its official Regular Public Board Meeting proceedings will 

assist in its communication with the public.  Therefore, the Board, at its sole discretion, 
may video record all or any portion of Board Meetings held in public, subject to the 
following limitations: 

  
a) The video recording of any public meeting of the Board of Education or other video 

recorded Board meeting produced by the District is the exclusive property of the 
District to be used at the Board’s discretion. 

b) Video recordings of Regular Public Board Meetings will be stored and available for 
viewing until the end of each school year. 

c)  The Board approved written minutes will continue to be the official record of the 
Meeting. 

  
3.5 The closed meeting is normally held on the same day as the open public meeting.  
 
3.6     The business of closed meetings shall be dealt with according to the prepared agenda in 

the following general order: 
 

a)  Guests or Presentations (if applicable) 
b)  Questions and/or discussion regarding the presentation (if applicable) 
c)  Dismissal of guests (if applicable) 
d)  Approval of in-camera Agenda with any additions or deletions 
e)  Adoption of Minutes 
f)   Correspondence 
g)  Reports from:   

i. Superintendent  
ii. Secretary-Treasurer  

iii. Committees 
h)  Other Business 
i)   Adjournment 
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3.7     Question Periods will be held at all Open Regular Meetings. There will be one question 

period at the beginning of the meeting and another at the end.  The public may raise 
any question except for those which are usually considered in Special Closed meetings.  

 
 
4. Special Meetings 
 
4.1     A Special Meeting of the Board may be called by the Board Chair or, upon the request of 

a majority of the Trustees, shall be called by the Secretary-Treasurer.  No business other 
than that for which the Special Meeting was called shall be conducted at that meeting. 

 
4.2     When possible, written notice of a Special Meeting and an agenda shall be given to each 

Trustee forty-eight hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
 
5. Closed Meetings  

  
5.1     The Board may convene a meeting without the public (School Act, Sec.69.2). Topics 

which require: protecting individual privacy; negotiations of contracts; personnel issues;  
student welfare or discipline; issues dealing with security, land, labour, litigation and 
other such topics will be discussed at Closed Meetings.  

 
5.2     The Board may convene a meeting without the public and staff present. Matters of a 

confidential nature shall be discussed.  However, these meetings shall be subject to the 
requirements of the School Act, with respect to the presence of a corporate officer 
when the meeting is called to order and if any motions are to be considered.    

 
5.3    No Trustee shall disclose the proceedings of a Closed Meeting unless a resolution has 

been passed at the Closed Meeting to allow disclosure.  
 
5.4     Once considered in a closed meeting the Board may deem it appropriate and in the 

public’s best interest to continue the discussion of any previously closed topic at a public 
meeting.  

 



 
  POLICY 2 

 

 

 

School District #47 Powell River                                                                      
Adopted:   April 19, 2016   
Reviewed: October 23, 2019 September 8, 2021  
Revised:   November 13, 2019 
  5

   

 
 
6. Public Information Meetings 
 
6.1     The Board may hold public information meetings on major issues to provide or obtain 

information on proposed changes to operational practices which will substantially affect 
instructional delivery, facility location, school closure, program relocation, and district 
funding.  The Board Chair and/or designate shall preside over the meeting accompanied 
by appropriate resource staff assigned by the Superintendent to assist with the 
proceedings. 

 
6.2      Public Information meetings will be advertised using local media and/or the School 

District website www.sd47.bc.ca. 
 
 
7. Working Sessions 
 
7.1       The Board feels it is desirable to meet periodically in a working session environment. In 

this setting, trustees discuss District goals and objectives, evaluate the Superintendent, 
receive professional development on District programs and review other matters 
pertaining to the operation of the District.  

 
7.2    At these sessions the Board shall take no action that replaces debate or actions which 

should occur at public meetings. 
 
7.3    The agenda will be prepared by the Superintendent under the direction of the Chair. 

The Superintendent is expected to attend the working session and determine if other 
senior administration staff are to attend and for how long they will attend.  

 
 
8. Agenda for Regular Meetings 
 
8.1     Within three business days, items may be placed on the agenda by notifying the Board 

Chair. Items may also be included by notice of motion at a previous meeting or a 
request from a committee of the Board within three business days of the meeting. 
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8.2     During the course of the Board meeting, the majority of trustees present may request 

that the Board Chair place items before the Board for discussion.  
 
8.3    The agenda will be supported by copies of letters, reports, contracts and other materials 

as are pertinent to the business which will come before the Board and will be of value to 
the Board in the performance of its duties. 

 
8.4     An agenda information package, containing the agenda and supporting information, 

should be distributed to each trustee at least three days in advance of regular Board 
meetings.   

 
8.5     The list of agenda items for the Open Meeting shall be posted in a place readily 

accessible to the general public one day prior to the meeting. Any elector may inspect 
the agenda and request a copy. 

 
 
9. Minutes 
 

The Board shall maintain and preserve by means of minutes a record of its proceedings 
and resolutions.  

 
9. 1    The minutes shall record: 

a)   Date, time and place of meeting. 
b)   Type of meeting (regular, special or committee). 
c)   Name of presiding officer. 
d)   Names of those trustees and administration in attendance. 
e)   A brief summary of circumstances of the issue being debated. 
f)   All resolutions, including their disposition, placed before the Board, and should be 

entered in full. 
g)  Names of persons making and seconding the motion. 
h)  Any points of order and/or appeals. 
i)   Appointments. 
j)   Summarized reports of committees. 
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k)  Trustee declarations pertaining to conflict of interest (sections 56, 57, or 58 of the 

School Act). 
 
9. 2.  The Minutes shall: 

a)  Be prepared as directed by the Superintendent. 
b)  Be reviewed by the Superintendent or designate prior to submission to the Board. 
c)  Be considered an unofficial record of proceedings until such time as adopted by a 

resolution of the Board. 
d)  Upon adoption by the Board, be deemed to be the official and sole record of the 

Board’s business. 
e)  Upon acceptance by the Board and by way of the Secretary-Treasurer’s assurance 

have the appropriate signatures affixed to the concluding page. 
 
9.3    The Secretary-Treasurer shall: 

a)  Establish and maintain a file of all Board minutes. 
b)  Establish a codification system for resolutions determined by the Board, which will 

provide for ready identification as to the meeting at which they were considered. 
c)  Provide for cross-referencing with resolutions of a similar nature adopted by the 

Board at previous meetings. 
 
9.4     Upon adoption by the Board, the Open Meeting minutes shall be available for public 

scrutiny online and at the Board office at all reasonable times. 
 
9.5     The Open Meeting minutes adopted by the Board shall be added to the District website 

www.sd47.bc.ca and distributed to all trustees and other destinations as directed by the 
Board as soon as is practicable. 

 
9.6     All committees of the Board, unless otherwise directed, shall prepare and submit 

minutes or a report to the Board. 
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10. Board Meeting Rules of Order 
 
10.1    The Board Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Board but may vacate the chair in 

order to enter debate or propose or second a motion. 
 
10.2    The Vice-Chair shall preside in the absence of the Board Chair or when the Board Chair 

vacates the chair. 
 
10.3     In the event that neither the Board Chair nor the Vice-Chair is able or willing to take the 

chair, the presiding officer shall be such person as the Board may elect for that meeting. 
 
10.4    The presiding officer shall rule on all points of order and shall state reasons and the 

authority for a ruling when making a ruling.   The presiding officer's ruling shall be 
subject to appeal to the Board.  An appeal may only be requested immediately after a 
ruling and before resumption of business. 

 
10.5    Where District policy is silent Robert's Rules of Order shall apply to the conduct of 

meetings. Where policy and Robert's Rules of Order are both silent, the decision of the 
presiding officer shall be the authoritative ruling. 

 
10.6    Where there is an inconsistency between these rules and the School Act, the School Act 

shall apply over the rule in question. 
 
10.7    The Secretary-Treasurer or Superintendent shall act as parliamentarian to the presiding 

officer and when requested shall advise the Chair or the Board on Rules of Order. 
 
10.8    The Board may adopt a procedural rule for one or more meetings by resolution of the 

Trustees present at the meeting. 
 
10.9     A rule of order may be suspended by unanimous consent of the Trustees present. 
 
10.10  An appeal of a ruling of the presiding officer shall be decided without debate by a 

majority vote of Trustees present. When an appeal is successful it does not set a 
precedent. 
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10.11  These rules may be amended by policy amendment only, at a meeting in which notice of 

intention to propose the amendment has been given at the previous meeting. 
 
10.12  All questions shall be decided by a vote on motion. 
 
 
11. Board Motions and Resolutions 
 
11.1     All matters requiring a Board decision or opinion relating to the formal Board meeting 

agenda shall be done by a motion, which has been moved and seconded for discussion  
 or debate. An opportunity for questions and/or clarification will be provided before the 

motion is read to the assembly by the presiding officer.  
 
11.2     Motions shall be phrased in a clear and concise manner so as to express an opinion or 

achieve a result.   A preamble does not form part of a Resolution when passed. 
 
11.3    The presiding officer may divide a motion containing more than one subject if it is felt 

that it would produce a fairer or clearer result and the same shall be voted on in the 
form in which it is divided. 

 
11.4     No motion other than to postpone consideration of a question, or a procedural motion, 

shall be reconsidered during the calendar year except by the reconsideration or 
rescinding process. 

 
11.5     A motion to reconsider cannot be applied to an action that cannot be reversed; for 

example, entering into a contract.  
 
11.6     A motion to reconsider can only be made at the same meeting where the original 

motion was voted upon and by a member who voted on the prevailing side. No question 
can be reconsidered twice. 

 
11.7     A motion to rescind will be considered only if notice has been given at the previous 

meeting or if notice was given in the call for the present meeting. A motion to rescind 
may be moved by any trustee, regardless of his/her original vote. 
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11.8     A motion to table is not debatable other than as to propriety. (There is no set time 

limit).  A motion to postpone is debatable; (it can be postponed indefinitely or to a 
certain time). 

 
11.9     A motion can be withdrawn or modified by the mover without the consent of anyone 

before the motion is stated by the Chair. Once the motion has been stated by the Chair, 
it belongs to the assembly and the mover must request its permission to withdraw or 
modify it. If there is an objection, the Chair shall ask the meeting if the request should 
be granted and a majority vote is needed for withdrawal. 

 
 
11.10   All motions to refer resolutions to the Canadian School Boards Association (CSBA), BC 

School Trustees Association (BCSTA), or branches thereof for endorsement or adoption, 
shall receive prior discussion in order to clarify intent and wording of the main 
resolution. 

 
11.11   All motions to amend Board policy shall be submitted in writing to the Secretary-

Treasurer and presented to the Board at a regular meeting immediately preceding the 
regular meeting at which they are to be discussed. (Notice of Motion). A written Notice 
of Motion to amend Board policy shall contain the proposed action and rationale. See 
Policy 7 (sections 3.10, 3.11, 3.12). 

 
11.12   All motions must be seconded except in Committee of the Whole or Board Committee 

meetings. 
 
 
12. Amendments to a Motion 
 
12.1     All motions shall be subject to amendment except the following: 
 

a) Motion that the question be now put. 
b) Motion for adjournment of debate or adjournment of a meeting. 
c) Motion to table. 
d) Motion to proceed to next business. 
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12.2  An amendment to a motion does not require notice. 
 
12.3  Only one amendment to an amendment shall be allowed and the same shall be dealt 

with before the amendment is decided. 
 
12.4  Amendments must be strictly relevant to the main motion and will not change the 

intent of the original motion.  
 
12.5  Amendments may also be made by a "substitute" motion if the substitute is not 

contrary to the principle embodied in the main motion. 
 
 
13. Debate 
 
13.1  Debate shall be strictly relevant to the question and the presiding officer shall warn 

speakers who violate this rule. 
 
13.2  No person shall speak until recognized by the Chair. 
 
12.3  No trustee shall speak more than three times to a question unless a motion to extend 

debate is made, seconded, and carried except the mover of the motion who will have 
the right to make a reply when all trustees who wish to speak have spoken.  

 
13.4  No trustee shall speak for a period in excess of three minutes at one time during debate. 

The presiding officer may caution the individual who persists in tedious and repetitious 
debate and may direct that trustee to discontinue if he/she persists. The presiding 
officer shall have sole discretion in applying this paragraph and may in her/his discretion 
ignore it. 

 
13.5  A matter dealing with the rights or interests of the Board as a whole or of a trustee 

personally (a point of privilege) may be raised at any time and shall be dealt with before 
resumption of business. 
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13.6  No trustee shall interrupt another trustee who has the floor except to raise a point of 

order or a point of privilege. 
 
13.7  A motion may be made by a member who has obtained the floor as long as a question is 

pending. The maker of the motion may speak first to the motion. 
 
13.8  A trustee may require the motion under discussion to be read at any time during 

debate, except when a trustee is speaking. 
 
13.9 When a trustee believes debate should be closed and a vote taken, the Chair will 

respond by announcing that the "question has been called “and ask if there is further 
discussion. If there is, it must be allowed. 

 
13.10  Debate can also be closed by a motion to end debate. This is not debatable, must have a 

seconder, and must be approved by the majority. 
 
13.11  This policy shall govern points of order and procedures not provided for or specified by 

the School Act. Where there is an inconsistency, the School Act shall apply. Where  
 situations arise which are not covered by the School Act or policy, the Chair will make 

reference to Robert’s Rules. 
 
13.12  An appeal may only be requested immediately after a ruling and before resumption of 

business. The appeal shall be decided without debate by a majority vote of trustees 
present. A successful appeal does not necessarily set a precedent. 

 
13.13  All motions are debatable except the following: 
 

a) Motion for adjournment of debate or for adjournment of a meeting other than to 
set a time limit, in which case the motion shall be debatable as to time only; 

b)  Motion to fix time to adjournment of a meeting; 
c)  Motion to proceed to the next business; 
d)  Motion to go into Committee of the Whole or Closed Session; 
e)  Motion to refer shall be debatable as to time or referral only; 
f)  Motion to table; 
g)  Motion to postpone is debatable as to time only. 
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14.  Voting 
 
14.1  A quorum of the Board shall be three trustees. 
 
14.2  All trustees present at a meeting are expected to vote, although, a trustee must abstain 

from voting in the event that he/she is in a conflict of interest position due to a direct 
pecuniary interest in the outcome of the vote (Section 58, School Act). A trustee may 
also abstain from voting if he/she states at the meeting her/his reasons thereon prior to 
a vote being taken. 

 
14.3  Where an interpretation is required, the question at hand shall be deferred until the 

following meeting or, if emergent, to the end of the meeting to allow staff to research 
the appropriate interpretation based on Robert's Rules. The resulting interpretation 
may require a change to said policy and, if so, will be done by notice of motion. A notice 
of motion to update this policy will be made subsequent to the question at hand being 
dealt with. 

 
14.4  Voting shall be by a show of hands and under normal circumstances all negative votes 

and abstentions shall be recorded by name in every case. Upon request, where a 
conflict exists, the reason(s) for an abstention shall be recorded. 

 
14.5  The Chair has the same right to vote and shall vote at the same time as the other  

members of the Board and, in the case of an equality of votes for and against a motion, 
(a tie), the question is resolved in the negative, and the Chair shall so declare. 

 
14.6  All questions shall be decided by a majority of the votes of the Board quorum present 

and voting recorded as otherwise provided by these rules or the School Act. 
 
14.7  In the event that a Trustee abstains as provided in paragraph 14.2 of this section that 

trustee shall be deemed to have voted for the question. 
 
14.8   The presiding officer may vote at the same time as the other members of the Board and, 

in the case of equality of votes for and against a motion, a tie, the question will be 
declared ‘not passed’ by the presiding officer.  
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15. Delegations to Board Meetings 
 
Input from individuals and groups within the school system or general public is encouraged and 
welcomed.  The Board believes that it has the responsibility to provide members of the 
community the opportunity to voice any concerns or ideas relating to educational matters 
directly to the Board.  The Board also believes it has a responsibility to conduct all of its 
meetings in an orderly and efficient fashion. Hence the Board will receive representations and  
delegations on any subject pertinent to Board business provided the item has been placed on 
the agenda. 
 
15.1  Requests to present shall be made in writing to the Superintendent or designate on or 

before 12:00 noon on the Tuesday preceding the regular Board meeting.  
 
15.2  In order to assist delegations with their presentations, guidelines for delegations, will be 

made available at the time the request to present is made.  
 
15.3  The Board Chair may refer delegation requests to a closed meeting. The Board Chair 

reserves the right to limit the number of delegations appearing at a particular Board 
meeting and may request they appear at an alternate date. 

 
15.4  The delegation shall identify a spokesperson for all group appointments. 
 
15.5  Despite 15.1 above, an individual or group may appear before the Board at a regular 

meeting and request placement on the agenda without prior notice. The Board will 
determine whether or not the delegation will be added to the agenda that that time. 

 
15.6  If a trustee wishes to request that the topic be referred to a later Board Meeting, the 

trustee should follow the process outlined in section 8.1 such that the request is 
brought forward to the Board Chair to include on the next meeting agenda.  

 
15.7  The Board appreciates the time and effort students, staff members and members of the 

general public take to present to the Board. In recognition, school delegations are 
acknowledged by sending a letter of thanks to the delegation.  
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16. Committees of the Board 
 
16.1  At the Inaugural Board meeting the Board Chair shall present recommendations of 

trustees for membership on Board Committees for the following year. 
 
16.2  The Board shall by Resolution decide upon the Chair’s recommendations.  
  
16.3  Members of the Board may attend meetings of any of its committees. 
 
16.4  No committee meeting shall be more than two hours in length. Meetings will be held 

only as required for Appeals, CUPE negotiations, Drugs/Discipline, PRDTA and Admin 
negotiations. All other committees shall meet regularly as required.  

 
16.5  The rules which apply in Regular Board Meetings shall be observed in meetings of Board 

Committees so far as they may be applicable. 
 
16.6  On completion of deliberations on matters referred to it, a committee shall report its 

findings and/or recommendations to the whole Board.   
 
16.7  No committee may make decisions on its own; they advise of the Board of School 

Trustees, in order to facilitate the work of the Board. 
 
16.8  The actions of a committee shall not be complete until its report has been dealt with by 

the Board.   A committee may refer matters to another committee it deems 
appropriate. 

 
16.9  Committees of the Board shall follow definite Terms of Reference which have been 

approved by the School Board of Trustees.  
 
 
17. Committee of the Whole 

 
17.1  By resolution, the Board may move to Committee of the Whole at any time during an 

Open Meeting, Special Meeting, or Closed Meeting.  
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17.2  The rules applied at regular meetings shall be observed while in Committee of the 

Whole so far as they are applicable, except as to the requirement for seconding of 
motions and limiting the number of times of speaking.  

 
17.3  Speeches in Committee of the Whole must be strictly relevant to the item or clause 

under consideration.  
  
 
18. Ad Hoc Committees 
 
18.1  The Board may at any time appoint an Ad Hoc Committees and set their terms of 

reference and duration. 
 
18.2  When an Ad Hoc Committee is appointed, the Board Chair shall name the members to 

serve on that Committee. 
 
18.3  The rules which apply in Regular Board Meetings shall be observed in meetings of Ad 

Hoc Committees so far as they may be applicable. 
  
 
19.  Resolutions, Policies and By-laws 
 
19.1  All matters shall be dealt with by resolution, policy statement or by-law. 
  
19.2  A Resolution shall have only one reading. 
 
19.3  Resolutions shall be assumed to be for the duration of the specific action referred to 

within a resolution or in any case not longer than one year, except for the following: 
a)   Resolutions may specify certain dates for which actions are applicable. 
b)  Resolutions which have policy implications or are intended to be for district 

guidance for periods greater than one year, shall be referred to the District Policy 
Development Process. (See Policy 7). 
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19.4  New policies, and significant changes to existing policy shall have two readings - the first 

for information; the second for recommendation. The readings shall be at two separate 
Regular Board meetings, unless a majority of trustees waive the rule in extraordinary 
circumstances. 

 
19.5  A By-Law shall have three readings. 
 

19.6  The following matters shall only be resolved by By-Laws:  
a)   Amendments to By-Laws. 
b)   Where required by the School Act.                 

 
 
20. Signatories for the Board 
 
Any two of the Chair, Vice Chair, Superintendent and the Secretary-Treasurer shall be the 
official signatories for legal documents and cheques.  
 
 
 
References:  School Act (sections 56, 57, 58, 66, 67, 67.1, 67.2, 69.2, 72, 95.43, and 95.45) 
  School District 47 Policy 7, Policy Development (sections 3.10,3.11 and 3.12) 



September 2021 

 
 
 

 
JULY 

 Participate in National Trustees Gathering on Indigenous 
Education & CSBA Congress – July 7-9, 2021 (virtual) 

 
SEPTEMBER 

 Review Board Annual Work Plan 

 Receive Enhancing Student Learning Report 

 Review School Growth Plans 

 Review Audit Findings Report 

 Adopt Annual Financial Statements 

 Adopt Multi Year Capital  

 Review Executive Compensation Disclosure  

 Approve Power to Suspend 

 Approve Maintenance of Order 

 Recognize Orange Shirt Day – Every Child Matters 
 
OCTOBER  

 Receive Summer Facility Plan Report 

 Review Enrolment Information 

 Represent Board at BCPSEA Symposium 

 Represent Board at BCSTA Provincial Council 

 Chairperson – Represent Board at Ministry of Education 
Annual Partner Liaison Meeting 

 Recognize World Teachers’ Day 

 Recognize World Mental Health Day 
 

NOVEMBER  

 Attend Remembrance Day Assemblies 

 Review Schedule of Winter Concerts  
 
DECEMBER  

 Election of Board Chairperson & Vice Chairperson 

 Receive Statement of Financial Information  

 Review Annual PR Living Communications Plan 

 Attend BCSTA Trustee Academy 

 Attend Winter Concerts 

 Sign Cards for School and Staff Appreciation 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
JANUARY  

 Receive Strategic & School Growth Plan Interim Report  

 Participate in informal Board/Superintendent Evaluation 

 Approve Trustee Appointments to Committees and 
Community Liaison Groups 

 Review Trustee Remuneration 

 Submit Financial Disclosure Forms by January 15th 

 Represent Board at BCPSEA AGM   

 Recognize Literacy Week  
 

FEBRUARY 

 Adopt Amended Annual Budget 

 Review School Calendar Consultation Information 

 Represent Board at BCSTA Provincial Council 

 Recognize Pink Shirt Day – Anti Bullying 
 
MARCH 

 Approve School Calendar Submission 

 Review Provincial Motions for BCSTA AGM 

 Approve Budget Process  
 
APRIL 

 Review Government Grant Information 

 Represent Board at BCSTA Provincial Council 

 Attend BCSTA AGM 

 Recognize Education Week 
 
MAY 

 Recognize Mental Health Week 
 
JUNE 

 Adopt Annual Budget  

 Receive Carbon Neutral Action Report  

 Review Annual Facility Grant Plans 

 Review Strategic Plan 

 Review Board Meeting Calendar  

 Review Draft Board Work Plan 

 Participate in Employee Recognition Event 

 Participate in Board Retirement Celebration 

 Participate in SD47 Graduation, Award and Scholarship 
Ceremony 

 Recognize National Indigenous Peoples Day 

ANNUAL BOARD WORK PLAN 2021-2022 



PROSPECTIVE DAYS OF OBSERVANCE 
 

SEPTEMBER 

• Terry Fox Run 

• Orange Shirt Day – Every Child Matters 

• National Day for Truth and Reconciliation 

• International FASD Day 

 

FEBRUARY 

• Pink Shirt Day – Anti Bullying 

• Black History Month 

• Moose Hide Campaign Day 

• Digital Learning Day 
 

OCTOBER 

• World Teachers’ Day 

• World Mental Health Day 

• LGBT History Month 

• National Prinicpals’ Month 

 

MARCH 

• Employee Appreciation Day 

• International Women’s Day 

• World Down Syndrome Day 

• International Transgender Day of Visibility  

• International Day for the Elimination of  
Racial Discrimination  

NOVEMBER 

• Remembrance Day  

• World Kindness Day 
 

APRIL  

• Volunteer Week 

• Education Week 

• Earth Day 

• National Day of Mourning 

• World Autism Day 

• International Day of Pink 

• World Creativity and Innovation Day 

• Day of Silence  

• National Administrative Professionals Week 

 
DECEMBER 

• National Day of Remembrance  
& Action on Violence Against Women  

• Human Rights Day 

MAY 

• Mental Health Week 

• National Day of Action against Anti-Asian 
Racism 

• National Prinicpals’ Day 

• National Child and Youth Mental Health Day 

• Teacher Appreciation Week 

• Child Care Provider Appreciation Day 

• Speech and Hearing Month 

 
JANUARY 

• Literacy Week 

• Black Shirt Day – Anti Racism 

• Bell Let’s Talk Day 

 

JUNE 

• National Indigenous Peoples Day 

• National Indigenous History Month 

• Pride Month 
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